

# Safeguards Management Software (SAMS)

# Application Interface Instructions

Prepared by: Revision Number: Date: Link Technologies, Inc. 3 7/12/2018

**Official Use Only** 

# (Blank Page)

# **Revision History**

<b>Revision No.</b>	<b>Issue Date</b>	<b>Description of Changes</b>
0	10/26/2009	Initial Release
1	6/21/2018	9.2 Update Release
2	7/6/2018	Manual Revision
3	7/12/2018	Manual Revision 2

# **Table of Contents**

I. Purpose	6
A. Assumptions	6
B. Security Concerns	6
C. Acronyms	7
II. Software Installation	8
A. Prerequisites	8
B. Hardware / Software Information	9
1. Client Requirements	9
2. Server Requirements	10
C. Installation Overview	11
D. Manual SAMS Installation	12
E. Standard SAMS Installation Error! Bookmark not defi	ned.
F. Database Server Installation Error! Bookmark not defi	ned.
G. Historical Records Display Setup	29
III. Conversion of Datasets to XML format	31
IV. Starting the SAMS Program	36
V. SAMS Main Application Screen and Menu Bar	37
VI. General Functionality for Key Buttons and Fields	38
A. Key Buttons	38
B. Performing Data Entry/ Data Editing	39
C. Selecting Data Records	40
D. Changing, Reordering, and Removing Columns	41
E. Performing a data table split	42
F. Selecting the Minimize, Restore Down, and Close window buttons	43
VII. Using Shortcut Menus	45
A. Goto Row # Command	45
B. Select, Deselect, and Invert Selected Records	46
C. Paste Command	47
D. Filter	48
E. Reset Filters	49
F. Find	49
G. Sort Ascending and Sort Descending	49
H. Restore Defaults	49
I. Export	49
J. Print	49
VIII. Authority Reference	50
IX. Transactions	51
A. Data Entry Transactions	52
1. Process Transactions	52
2. Run Transaction Edit Checks only	55
3. Edit Transactions	55
B. Export Error-Free Transactions to XML	60

C Move Transaction Records From Historical	63
D. Transactions Reports	64
1. 741 Simulated Report	65
<ol> <li>TJ-001 – Daily Transaction Data</li></ol>	68
3. TJ-002S – Transaction Data Errors	69
X. Inventory	70
A. Data Entry Inventory	70
1. Process Inventory	72
2. Run Inventory Edit checks only	75
3. Edit Inventory	76
4. Delete Inventory	78
B. Export Error-Free Inventory Records to XML	79
C. Move Inventory Records From Historical	81
D. Inventory Reports	82
1. I-002S – Inventory Data Errors	82
2. 742C Simulated Report	86
XI. Material Balance	89
A. Material Balance Data Entry	89
1. Process Material Balance	89
2. Run Material Balance Edit checks only	92
3. Edit Material Balance	93
4. Delete Material Balance	99
B. Export Error-Free Material Balance Records to XML 10	01
C. Move Material Balance Records From Historical 10	03
D. Material Balance Reports10	04
1. MB-002S – Material Balance Data Errors	04
2. 742 Simulated Report10	05
XII. System	09
A. Reset Defaults	09
B. Clear Data Cache	09
XIII. Utilities	10
A. Global Parameters	10
B. Import NMMSS Data1	10
XIV. Exit	12

# I. Purpose

This manual provides operational instructions concerning the Safeguards <u>Management</u> Software (SAMS) application program for submitting data to the Nuclear Material Management Safeguards System (NMMSS).

SAMS provides NMMSS data contributors a method of electronically storing and submitting transaction, inventory, and material balance data. SAMS provides identification of the data which conflicts with DOE and/or NRC rules and regulations so that it can be corrected prior to submittal to NMMSS. These verification errors are referred to as edit check errors.

SAMS is very similar to the NMMSS upgrade software application, used by the NMMSS Nuclear Materials Analysts to track all reported NMMSS data. Like the larger NMMSS, SAMS provides the ability to perform edit checks, generate various reports, hard copies of DOE/NRC Form 741, import and export transactions, material balance and inventory data. Since the functionality and look of SAMS is similar to NMMSS software currently being utilized at DOE-HQ, the analysts will be able to better assist in resolving problems encountered during its use.

# A. Assumptions

This user's manual assumes that the user has a general level of proficiency in the use of a personal computer and a general knowledge about the function of NMMSS. The intent of this manual is to provide guidance in how to use the application being provided. Not to instruct the end user on the DOE/NRC NMMSS reporting requirements. NMMSS reporting requirements can be located at http://www.hss.energy.gov/nmmss.

# B. Security Concerns

The user assumes all responsibilities for classifying and handling of data within the SAMS application and for the reports produced by this application. The initial SAMS database being delivered to the end use is considered to be **Unclassified - 'Official Use Only'**.

# C. Acronyms

DOE	United States Department of Energy
NMMSS	Nuclear Material Management and Safeguards System
NRC	Nuclear Regulatory Commission
RIS	Reporting Identification Symbol
SAMS	Safeguards Management Software
SIMEX	Secure Information Management Exchange Network

# **II.** Software Installation

The SAMS application can be installed as a single user standalone system on a PC or on a network under a client / server configuration. The following sections provide information critical to the installation and usage of the Safeguards Management Software (SAMS) product set, including hardware and software requirements. This information is based on version 9.2 of the SAMS application. The SAMS user should check for updated releases or patches for any changes to the installation instructions on subsequent releases.

## A. Prerequisites

One of the main changes in SAMS 9 is the streamlining of the installation process. The previous manual process can still be used with SAMS, but the recommended method is for users to use the full SAMS 9 installer either with or without the SQL Express component (noSQL installation).

For manual installation a SQL Server must be installed prior to initiating the SAMS application installation process. The Administrator privilege is required to perform the SAMS Application installation. The full version of the SAMS installer has Microsoft SQL Express 2012 included with the package and does not need any additional components for its deployment. If you are manually installing SAMS or are using the noSQL version of the SAMS installer, then the following components need to be configured and deployed:

1. Microsoft .NET Framework 4 is required before installing SAMS, located under the \_Redist directory of the application installation folder.

2. SQL Native Client 1.0 is required before installing SAMS, located under the \_Redist directory on the install folder.

3. SQL Server must be running, either on a server or for standalone on the computer you are Installing SAMS on. SAMS will run on SQL Server 2008, SQL Server 2012, SQL Server 2016. SAMS also supports SQL Express and any version between 8 and 16 can be used with the SAMS database. A copy of SQL Express 2012 is included, located under the \_Redist directory on the install folder.

### B. Hardware / Software Information

This section provides basic information on the hardware and software requirements for running the SAMS application and its database.

### 1. Client Requirements

Table 1 provides the recommendations and requirements for operating the SAMS client product on the desktop.

TADIE 1. DESKLUP REQUIREMENTS and RECOMMENDATIONS
---

Item	<b>Requirements and Recommendations</b>
Operating	Microsoft Windows Vista
Systems	• Windows 7
	• Windows 8, Windows 8.1
	• Windows 10
Other	• Microsoft .NET 2.0 Framework (x86)
Software /	• Microsoft .NET 4.0 Framework (x86 & x64)
Drivers	• Microsoft .NET 4.5.2 Framework (x86 & x64)
(Included with	• Microsoft Installer v2.0 & v3.0
the Installer)	Microsoft SQL Connector 11
	Notes:
	Both the SAMS Full Distribution and the SAMS no SQL
	Distribution (Option 1 & 2 listed above) contain all of the
	requirements needed for SAMS and will verify that the
	system already has those requirements installed. If not, both
	installers will automatically install the needed files prior to
	installing SAMS.
Hardware	• Any Intel based CPU (both x86 & x64 architecture are
	allowed)
	• 2 GB or higher RAM; Recommended 4GB or greater;
	more memory generally improves performance.
	• A minimum of 1GB of available storage space is required.
	• Microsoft mouse or compatible pointing device
	• CD-ROM drive, flash drive, downloaded installer files.

### 2. Server Requirements

Table 2 provides the recommendations and requirements for operating the SAMS database product.

Item	Requirements and Recommendations
Operating	Microsoft Windows 7 or later
Systems	Microsoft Windows Server 2003
	Microsoft Windows Server 2010
	Microsoft Windows Server 2012
Database	• Microsoft SQL Server 2008 Express, Standard, or
Server	Enterprise Edition, Service Pack 2 or later
	or
	Microsoft SQL Server 2008
	or
	Microsoft SQL Server 2012
	or
	Microsoft SQL Server 2016
Other	• Microsoft .NET 2.0 Framework (x86)
Software /	• Microsoft .NET 4.0 Framework (x86 & x64)
Drivers	• Microsoft .NET 4.5.2 Framework (x86 & x64)
	• Microsoft Installer v2.0 & v3.0
	Microsoft SQL Connector 11
Hardware	• 1 GHz or higher CPU
	• 1 GB or higher RAM;
	more memory generally improves performance.
	• Microsoft mouse or compatible pointing device
	• CD-ROM drive, flash drive, downloaded installer files.

 Table 2: Server Requirements and Recommendations

### C. Installation Overview

# Note: ANY PRIOR BETA RELEASE OF SAMS MUST BE UNINSTALLED PRIOR TO THIS INSTALLATION.

Note: If you already have SAMS 8.x installed in the same location you are installing SAMS 9.0 into it would be advisable that you either uninstall SAMS 8.x prior to installing this new version or manually rename the existing folder. If any of the existing SAMS 8.x files are open on your PC or if the installer has a permission schema that is lower than then what is needed to overwrite these files, then there is a possibility that the new version of SAMS 9.0 could fail to install correctly.

The latest release of SAMS is version 9.0.0.1 (as of 11/1/2017). To help accommodate the distribution of the software for a number of different configurations and environments.

There are three (3) types of SAMS installations available. Administrator privileges are required to properly install SAMS.

- SAMS 9.0 Full Installation This option includes all requirements needed to deploy a full version of SAMS either as a new installation or as an upgrade to an existing version of SAMS 8.x.x.x. This option also contains a new installation of Microsoft SQL Server 2012 (including both x86 and x64 depending on your system configuration). If SAMS has never been installed on your system, we recommend that you use this version of the SAMS installation.
- 2. SAMS 9.0 Installation without SQL Server All required files except for the new version of Microsoft SQL Server 2012 are included in this installer. If you wish to use the previous SQL server used with SAMS 8.x.x.x (Microsoft SQL Server 2008) or wish to have the SAMS database located on a different server then this option would be used to either upgrade SAMS 8.x or create a new installation of SAMS 9.0. Please note that an accessible version of SQL must be available for the installation to deploy the new SAMS database. If the SQL server resides on a system that is remote, the user will also be required to provide SQL credentials to access the remote server.
- 3. SAMS 9.0 Manual Installation If you do not wish to use the automatic installer for SAMS and would rather deploy the software manually, then this version of the SAMS installer would be required. Please note that this version only contains the

SAMS application files, SAMS database backup, and roaming profile configuration file.

SAMS and the installers used by SAMS are packaged to allow the software to function over a wide number of PC configurations.

### D. Manual Standalone Installation

If you wish to deploy SAMS manually (without the SAMS installer) then the following steps will need to be followed for successful deployment of the software.

- Run the *setup.exe* from the SAMS installation files or copy the manual installation files to the installation directory you wish to deploy SAMS in.
- Before you run SAMS the database will need to installed and the SQL connector will need to be configured.
  - Please install the files located in the \_Redist sub-folder of SAMS, the files are required for the program to operate correctly. The SQL database will also require certain parameters to be set and the scripts required to perform these can be located in the *C:\SAMS Application\Scripts\* sub-folder.
  - The setup will require a SAMS 9 database to use:
    - Previous versions of the SAMS database cannot be used with SAMS 9. Please back up the existing SAMS 8 or older database prior to installing or upgrading to SAMS 9. A copy of the SAMS 9 SQL database can be found in the SAMS Application/Database sub-folder. Proceed with the restoration of this database for the manual installation of SAMS 9.
  - To migrate the previous SAMS data a migration script has been provided in the SAMS Application\Scripts sub-folder. This can be used to move the previous SAMS data into the new SAMS 9 SQL database. Please contact support if you require assistance with this process.
- If other users will be using SAMS on this system, grant those users access to the SAMS database by performing the following in a command prompt window:
  - Change the directory to the folder where the SAMS Application was installed. By default, the location is: *C*:\*SAMS Application*\

• Change the directory to the Stored Procedures folder by entering:

#### cd Stored Procedures

• Add the user by entering:

#### SAMS\_SetupUser "(local)" "SAMS" "machine\userID"

where

*machine* is the name of the system *userID* is the user's Windows login name

For example, SAMS\_SetupUser "(local)" "SAMS" "TEST\JohnDoe"

Note:

1) A log file named SAMS\_AddUser.log is created each time the script is execute.

2) execute this command for every user requiring access to the SAMS application.

- After the installation is completed, perform the following tasks:
  - add database users to the SAMS database and grant access to the *SAMSUsers* database role.
  - create a share on the root folder where all reports will be created and grant read / write access to all SAMS users.
  - create a share on the root folder where all XML import files and import log files will be saved and grant read / write access to all SAMS users.
  - execute the following SQL commands against the SAMS database.

USE [SAMS]

UPDATE GlobalParameters SET [Value] = '*shared report folder*'' WHERE KeyField = 'BatchReportPath';

UPDATE GlobalParameters SET [Value] = '<*root folder*>\' WHERE KeyField = 'GeneratedReportPath'; UPDATE GlobalParameters SET [Value] = '*<shared XML folder*>\' WHERE KeyField = 'XMLImportPath';

<u>Note</u>: *<root folder>* is the root folder and *<shared folder>* is the shared folder defined above. Ensure that the folder names end with a back slash (\). For example: **C:\SAMSReports**\ and **\\abc\SAMSReports**\.

• Perform a full database backup of the SAMS database.

## E. Standard Installation of SAMS

One of the biggest enhancements of SAMS 9 versus previous releases is the packing of the installation files. In past versions multiple components and steps needed to be followed for installing or upgrading SAMS. Using SAMS 9 this process has been streamlined to include a single installation application that contains all required components needed for SAMS. This process is recommended for most users since it verifies that the correct account settings and components are included prior to initializing SAMS. Once you have downloaded or inserted the CD containing the SAMS installer, please launch the setup.exe file located in the SAMS installation directory. Please follow the steps shown below to complete the installation of SAMS 9:





Note: If the system is missing any of the SAMS 9.0 system requirements the installer will automatically install those prior to beginning the SAMS 9.0 installation. Depending on which requirements are missing, the system may need to reboot several times.

Follow the installer instructions until the screen in Figure 1 is displayed. If the system reboots during the installation process, do not re-launch the installer. After reboot, the SAMS 9.0 installer will automatically resume the installation process without any user intervention.

Once all of the core requirements are installed, click the "Next" button to proceed to the next step of the installation.



Figure 2.

Review the text provided in the License Agreement for SAMS as shown in Figure 2 above. To proceed, check the box marked "I accept the terms of the license agreement." The "Next" button will be grayed out and disabled until the box is checked.

Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) -	InstallAware Wiza	ard —		×
<b>Important Information</b> Please carefully read the following program	nformation.		C	
SAMS 9.0 Installation Informat	ion			^
Thank you for installing version 9.0 will create a new installation of SAN of SAMS 8.x.x to the latest software	of SAMS. T 1S or upgrad e build.	his setup pı e an existin	rocess Ig versio	on
Please be advised, that by upgrading an existing installation of SAMS the database containing previously stored data will be replaced with a newer version. The setup process will automatically migrate your existing data from the previous SAMS v8.x.x database to the newly installed v9.0 of the SAMS database. It is HIGHLY recommended that either you or your organization's IT				
InstallAware	< Back	Next >	Cance	el



It is advised that the information in the text box for Figure 3 be read and understood before proceeding. Note: Both the full installer of SAMS and the No SQL version of the installer allow for the upgrading of an older version of SAMS 8.x.x.x. This upgrade will back up the exiting SAMS 8.x database to "SAMS\_v8" and automatically migrate any user data that may have already be entered into SAMS.

Due to the many different environments that exist where SAMS can be used, it is highly recommended that existing SAMS 8.x data is backed up manually prior to installing the new version of SAMS. All possible efforts to ensure a smooth transition of the user data has been made, but there is always a risk that data will not transfer correctly. For help with this process, contact your IT support team or the NMMSS support team.

Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard –					
SAMS User Registration         Please enter information on who will be usisng SAMS         User Name:         User         Organization:         Organization         Organization         Organization         Station         Organization         Organization         Organization         Organization         Cancel	Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) -	InstallAware Wi	zard —		×
User         Organization:         Organization         Organization         VMMSS Development Team         < Back	SAMS User Registration Please enter information on who will be usis	ng SAMS		6	5
User         Organization:         Organization         MMMSS Development Team         < Back	User Name:				
Organization:	User				
Organization         NMMSS Development Team         < Back	<u>O</u> rganization:				
NMMSS Development Team       < Back	Organization				
NMMSS Development Team       < Back					
NMMSS Development Team       < Back					
NMMSS Development Team       < Back					
NMMSS Development Team     < Back					
NMMSS Development Team     < Back					
NMMSS Development Team     < Back     Next >     Cancel					
NMMSS Development Team     < Back     Next >     Cancel					
NMMSS Development Team     < Back     Next >     Cancel					
	NMMSS Development Team	< Back	Next >	Cano	cel

Figure 4.

### SAMS User Registration

Required fields: User Name and Organization. By default, these fields will be populated with the user's Windows credentials. If those are not found, the fields will remain blank and the user will be required to provide the requested information before proceeding. If the "Next" button is disabled, fill in the missing field and the installer will continue. The installation will not be able to be completed if the fields are left blank. See Figure 4.

### **Destination Folder**

The next step of the installation process requires the user to provide a location for where on the system to install the files for SAMS.

🌍 Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) -	InstallAware Wi	zard —		×
<b>Destination Folder</b> Select folder where setup will install SAMS.				5
Install Safeguards _Management System (S	AMS) to:			
C:\SAMS Application\		Cha	ange	
Destination Folder Required Disk Space: Remaining Disk Space:		62 258,	,208 KB 607 MB	
NMMSS Development Team	< Back	Next >	Ca	ancel

Figure 5.

SAMS uses the default path of \SAMS Application\ located on the C: drive of the computer the installer is being run on. We recommend that you keep this path but if you do need to deploy SAMS to a different location please either enter the path into the text field manually or click on the "Change..." button and use the file explorer to locate the drive and folder path you would like to use for your SAMS installation.

Note: If you already have SAMS 8.x installed in the same location you are installing SAMS 9.0 into it would be advisable that you either uninstall SAMS 8.x prior to installing this new version or manually rename the existing folder. If any of the existing SAMS 8.x files are open on your PC or if the installer has a permission schema that is lower than then what is needed to overwrite these files, then there is a possibility that the new version of SAMS 9.0 could fail to install correctly.

Once the desired installation path has been entered, please click the "Next" button to proceed with the installation process.

#### Select Program Folder

Once the location of the files has been set the installer will ask how the user would like to have SAMS added to the program list and which user accounts on the local system should have this added to their start group.





You can see the default values that are provided in Figure 6 above. The Program Folder is located in your program or application list under your start menu. If you choose to install the application for "Anyone who uses this computer (all users)" then SAMS will be listed as a available application for all users of the PC. If you wish to be the only users who sees the program menu for SAMS, please select "Only for me (current user)".

Please note that this is only for the program listings in the start menu and not a restriction on who will be able to access SAMS. The application will be accessible to all users regardless of which option is selected but the start menu shortcut will only be shown for the specific user if that option is selected above. For most users the default option is the best choice. Please click the "Next" button to continue with the SAMS deployment.

### **Existing SQL Servers Containing SAMS Scan**

Since SAMS uses a SQL server deployment as the backend database, the next step needs to be configured correctly for SAMS to function. We have made all effort to automate this process and make it as simple to follow as possible. Please read the following section carefully to proceed.



Figure 7.

The SAMS installer will automatically begin to search for any existing SQL servers. If you used the full installer of SAMS that included Microsoft SQL Server 2012 then this server will also be identified in the listing of available instances of SQL that can be used with SAMS.

The process will take between a few seconds up to a number of minuets depending on how large a network the PC is connected to. During this period the installer tried to look for any available instance of SQL to use with SAMS.

Note: If you have a local firewall installed you may get warning messages during the step asking for permission to allow SAMS access to the network. This is used to automatically identify accessible SQL servers to use with SAMS and should be allowed.

Once the SQL scan completes you will automatically move on to the screen shown in Figure 8 below.

Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard –		×
<b>Detect Existing SAMS Database Instances</b> Please select the existing SAMS database from the dropdown below		5
Instance Name Containing SAMS:		~
Specify SAMS SQL Authentication Mode: <sup>®</sup> Windows Authentication <sup>O</sup> Server Authentication		
SAMS Installation Wizard Next >	C	ancel



The dropdown option for "Instance Name Containing SAMS:" will be populated will all found SQL servers that the PC could find during the scan. There are also two methods for connecting to the SQL server provided.

It is important to understand where the SAMS database will be located and how SAMS will be allowed to connect to the server. If the server resides on the same PC as the SAMS software then "Windows Authentication" should be used. If the SAMS database resides on the system other than the local PC then Server Authentication should be used. Since the remote SQL server requires authentication via a username and password as shown in Figure 9 below you will need to contact your database administrator and have them provide you with the correct credentials.

Note: If you are installing both SAMS and SQL on the same PC, select "Windows Authentication" and make sure the "Instance Name Containing SAMS" dropdown is cleared (select any text that may be shown in the dropdown and click the keyboard delete key). This defaults the installer and provides the simplest method for deploying SAMS onto the local PC.

# SAMS Application Interface and deployment Instructions

Rev. 3 July 12, 2018 Page 24 of 112

🌍 Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard 🧼 —		×
Detect Existing SAMS Database Instances		
Please select the existing SAMS database from the dropdown below		57
Instance Name Containing SAMS:		
DESKTOP-AEH82C6	~	·
Specify SAMS SQL Authentication Mode:		
<sup>®</sup> Server Authentication		
User:		
SQL Username		
Password:		
SQL Password		
SAMS Installation Wizard		
Next >	Can	icel

Figure 9.

🋞 Safeg	uards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard —		×
SQL	Server Found. Checking for SAMS Database		
Ple	ease wait while setup attempts to connect to the specified server		6/
	Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard	]	
	<b>i</b> Success!		
	Connection test was successful.		
	ОК		
SAMS In:	stallation Wizard		
		С	ancel

Figure 10.

After selecting the database and clicking next the installer will try and connect to the selected SQL server and verify that it can communicate. If the server information is correct, a message box pop up will appear, declaring that "Connection test was successful." This indicates that the installer was able to connect and talk to the selected SQL server.

If you see the failure message being displayed then the installer was unable to make a connection with the specified SQL server. Please click the "Back" button and retry the SQL configuration. The installation process cannot continue unless the installer is able to communicate with the SQL server.

Please contact your local IT support team if you are unable to connect with any SQL server listed. There may be firewall rules or permissions set on your PC/Network that would not allow you to proceed with the SAMS installation.

🌑 Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard 🛛 – 🔹 🗙				
3	Completing the Install/Upgrade Wizard for Safeguards _Management System (SAMS)			
	The Install Wizard is now ready to configure Safeguards $\_$ Management System (SAMS) on this computer.			
	- Click Next to begin configuration			
	- Click Back to change settings			
	- Click Cancel to exit			
NMMSS Development Team	< Back Next > Cancel			



Once the SQL server portion of the installation is completed you will see a screen similar to Figure 11. You are now ready to complete the deployment process of SAMS 9.0. If you need to go back and make changes to the SAMS deployment configuration this will be the last chance. You can click the "Back" button and return to the previous menus. If you are ready to proceed, click the "Next" button to begin the final installation process.

🌑 Safeguards &	Management System (SAMS) -	InstallAware Wi	zard –	
Installing Sa The SAMS	feguards _Management System application features you selected	n (SAMS) are being config	ured.	5
1¢	Please wait while the InstallAware System (SAMS). This may take se	e Wizard installs S everal minutes.	afeguards _Manac	jement
	Status:			
NMMSS Developm	ent Team	< Back	Next >	Cancel

Figure 12.

While the process bar fills up, SAMS is installing the SAMS software on your PC. Depending on the speed of your PC, this will take a few seconds to a few minutes to complete.

🌑 Safeguards & Management System (SAMS) - InstallAware Wizard 🛛 – 🔹 🗡				
3	Completing the InstallAware Wizard for Safeguards _Management System (SAMS)			
	You have successfully completed the InstallAware Wizard for Safeguards _Management System (SAMS).			
	Run Safeguards Management System (SAMS) now			
	To close this wizard, click Finish.			
InstallAware	< Back <b>Finish</b> Cancel			

Figure 13.

After the installer completes the setup process you will see a screen similar to Figure 13 above. This indicates that the SAMS setup has been completed successfully and SAMS is now ready to be launched. Click the Finish button to launch SAMS (Note: If this is the first time launching SAMS the initial start will take a little bit longer while the first run configuration is deployed).

Congratulations, you are now ready to run and use SAMS 9.0.

### In case database connection to SAMS cannot be established on launch:

In the SAMS deployment folder (the folder where you installed SAMS into) there is a file named NMMSS.udl. If you used anything other than the default SQL instance when selecting the SQL server, you will need to manually modify this connection string and point it to the location of the SQL server that contains the newly deployed SAMS 9.0 database.

Please contact NMMSS SAMS support for additional guidance on manually modifying the SAMS database connection string.

### F. Historical Records Display Setup

The SAMS application will display historical records with a yellow background if the display settings are configured correctly. This task is accomplished by updating the display control settings as followed:

Note: These steps are based on a Windows XP operating system being used to run SAMS. They may vary based on the application being run on the PS or if it being run under a client / server setup.

Open the following Windows menu options:

- 1. Start
- 2. Settings
- 3. Control Panel
- 4. Display
- 5. Select Appearance tab
- 6. Select the Advanced button

Themes Desktop Screen Saver Appearance Settings     Inactive Window Image: Color scheme:   Windows Standard     Windows Standard     Font size: Advanced	lay Properties
Inactive Window         Active Window         Normal Disabled Selected         Window Text         Message Box         Message Text         OK	nemes Desktop Screen Saver Appearance Settings
Inactive Window   Active Window   Normal Disabled Selected   Window Text   Message Box   Message Text   OK    Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal   Advanced	
Active Window   Normal Disabled Selected   Window Text   Message Box   Message Text   OK   Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal     Advanced	Inactive Window
Normal Disabled Selected   Window Text   Message Box   Message Text   OK    Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal     Advanced	Active Window
Window Text   Message Box   Message Text   OK      Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal     Advanced	Normal Disabled Selected
Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal	Window Text
Message Box   Message Text   OK     Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal     Advanced	
Windows and buttons:         Windows Classic style         Color scheme:         Windows Standard         Font size:         Normal	Message Box X
Windows and buttons:   Windows Classic style   Color scheme:   Windows Standard   Font size:   Normal     Advanced	OK
Windows and buttons:         Windows Classic style         Color scheme:         Windows Standard         Font size:         Normal	
Windows and buttons:       Windows Classic style       Color scheme:       Windows Standard       Font size:       Normal         Advanced	
Windows Classic style       Color scheme:       Windows Standard       Font size:       Normal         Advanced	Windows and buttons:
Color scheme:       Windows Standard       Font size:       Normal         Advanced	
Windows Standard     Image: Constraint of the standard       Font size:     Image: Constraint of the standard       Normal     Image: Constraint of the standard	Color scheme:
Font size:     Effects       Normal     Advanced	Windows Standard
Normal Advanced	Font size:Effects
	Normal Advanced
OK Cancel Apply	OK Cancel Apply

7. Once the Advances Appearance window is opened, use the Item dropdown list and select the Inactive Title Bar option.

Advanced Appearance			? ×
Inactive Window			
Active Window			
Normal Disabled S	elected		
Window Text			
Message Box		×	
Message Text	~ I		
If you select a windows an it will override the following Item:	d buttons set ) settings, exc	ting other that tept in some of Size:	an Windows Classic, older programs. Color 1: Color 2:
Inactive Title Bar	•	18 🕂	
Font: Tahoma	<u>•</u>	Size:	Color:
		ОК	Cancel

- 8. Change the Item Inactive Title Bar color 1 to bright yellow
- 9. Change the Font color to **black**
- 10. Click the OK button to close and apply all the changes.

The historical records will now be displayed with a yellow background in any of the SAMS tables / grids. This is a one time setting that needs to be completed by the user during their initial setup to run the SAMS application. Each user may need to complete this task depending on how the user's computer systems are setup and maintained.

# **III.** Conversion of Datasets to XML format

The SAMS application requires that all datasets be converted to the most recent XML format prior to loading them into the SAMS system. Therefore, sites that use the 80 column format or flat files must convert the data over to the XML format before using the SAMS application.

This new version of the XML format is based on the information listed in the DOE/NRC guidance (D-23 Personal Computer Data Input for DOE Contractors and D-24 Personal Computer Data Input for NRC Licensees) effective on January 1, 2009.

Both of these guidance documents list out the new 80 column and XML required formats for NMMSS reporting. These new formats are referenced as **Version 2** or the most current versions of the NMMSS data input requirements.

Any data input, whether it be 80 column or XML, that is based on DOE/NRC guidance prior to January 1, 2009 is considered to be an old format and is referenced as a **Version 1** formats for data entry.

In recap, there are currently four potential sources of data input being used today for NMMSS data operational inputs:

1.	80 column	Version 1	prior to Jan. 1, 2009	(old)
2.	XML	Version 1	prior to Jan. 1, 2009	(old)
3.	80 column	Version 2	Jan. 1, 2009	(new)
4.	XML	Version 2	Jan. 1, 2009	(new)

Note: All data must be converted to the XML Version 2 (**No. 4 above**) for SAMS version 6.0 input. Usually a site or RIS will use only one of the above formats for data entry to NMMSS operations based on the site specific software being utilized. If the data is already in the XML version 2 format, then the SAMS converter is not needed for importing the information into the SAMS application.

The SAMS converter is an additional application that is provided with the SAMS application software. Once the software is installed it can be accessed by going to the Windows Start button and looking under the Program Files. Click on the SAMS Converter icon to access the application.



Start: Program Files/SAMS/SAMS Converter

Note: The installation process also places a shortcut button on the desktop of a standalone PC or on the client for a client / server type of installation for the SAMS Converter.

Once the SAMS Converter screen is opened it will display all three of the input types that can be converted to an XML version 2 format. The user will need to select which type of data file will be selected to be converted to XML. After the radio button is selected for the type of file to be converted, then the user needs to select the type of data that is being processed (Transactions, Inventory, or Material Balance).

Note: The SAMS Converter box displays all three of the process activities that are available.

	NMM55 File Converter
	Select Type of File to Convert <ul> <li>80-column - Version 1</li> <li>80-column - Version 2</li> <li>XML - Version 1</li> </ul>
_	Process Transaction Data
	Process Inventory Data Process Material Balance Data
	Exit

Once one of the process buttons above is selected, the converter will require that the user select the location that the datasets are stored in. This folder is determined by the system user as to where the original dataset is stored and where they want to store their XML Version 2 dataset file once it is processed through the application.

Note: It is recommended that the types of datasets (Transactions, Inventory, and Material Balance) be placed in different folders to minimize the chance that the wrong type of file is selected by the end user.

If at any time the user wishes to cancel the conversion process, they can select the Exit button and the converter will be closed.

Select the 740 t	o Convert	<u>?</u> ×
Look in	: 🔄 NMMSS DataSets 💿 🗢 🛍 🗃	
History History Desktop My Computer My Network P	<ul> <li>Back Reference Edits Load</li> <li>Backing Out Tests Load</li> <li>Detail Edits Load2</li> <li>Duplicates for TRPRO10 Load</li> </ul>	
	File name: Op	en
	Files of type:     All Files (*.*)     Car	

After a data set is selected and the Open button is selected, the converter will make a copy of the file using an XML format. The file name will be the same as the original file name with the .XML extension. Note the new file is placed into the same folder as the original one. Note that the converter will only process one file at a time.

Select the 740 to	) Convert		? ×
Look in:	C NMMSS DataSets	- 🖬 📩 🖬	
	Name 🔺	Туре	Size Mc
<u>.</u>	🗒 Back Reference Edits Load	Text Document	24 KB 5/:
History	Back Reference Edits Load	XML Document	79 KB - 7/:
	Backing Out Tests Load	Text Document	5 KB - 5/5
	Backing Out Tests Load	XML Document	16 KB - 7/:
Desktop	🗒 Detail Edits Load2	Text Document	23 KB 5/5
	🔮 Detail Edits Load2	XML Document	73 KB - 7/:
	Duplicates for TRPRO10 Load	Text Document	4 KB 5/5
My Computer	🕍 Duplicates for TRPRO10 Load	XML Document	12 KB - 7/:
My Network P	•		F
	File name:	•	Open
	Files of type: All Files (*.*)		Cancel

Upon successful completion of the conversion from an 80 column format to an XML version 2 format, the system will inform the user that the file was successfully converted.

After the file is converted you can start importing the data into the SAMS application for further processing. See SAMS Transactions, Inventory, and Material Balance sections for more information on importing and processing data through the SAMS application software.



Note: A dataset file can be processed multiple times if desired and the system will ask if the previously processed file is to be replaced by the newly created file. This gives the end user the option to make multiple data conversion if they notice any corrections that need to be made to the NMMSS site specific files.

# **IV. Starting the SAMS Program**

To access SAMS using the Start menu, first click the Start button on the task bar at the bottom of the screen. The Start menu will appear. Point to Programs to access the Programs submenu. Locate the SAMS program and click on the SAMS icon in the submenu to open the program. You will also see a SAMS and SAMS Converter shortcut on your desktop once the SAMS 9 installer has completed the installation of the software. If you do not have a shortcut or performed a manual installation of SAMS you will need to create a shortcut to the C:\[SAMS Installation Folder]\NMMSS.exe file. This is the main executable that will launch the SAMS program.



**Note:** Depending on the configuration of your system, a reboot may be required after installing SAMS.
## V. SAMS Main Application Screen and Menu Bar

Once you access the SAMS program, a blank screen with a header and a menu bar appears. The following illustration identifies these parts of the SAMS screen.



Here is a screen shot of the initial SAMS screen. I didn't want to hold up your progress on the documentation.

The header shows the SAMS connecting server and the menu bar shows the primary used menus in SAMS. Under each of the menu items is a list of commands. When a command is selected or clicked on, a submenu command list will appear. If a command has a small right-facing arrow next to it, this indicates that a cascading submenu is associated with the command which will appear to the side of the command.

📰 Safeguards Management Software (Sa	AMS)				
Authority Reference Iransactions Inventor	/ <u>Material Balance</u>	<u>S</u> ystem	Utilities	E <u>x</u> it	
DataEntry  SAMS RIS Address	Ex. Authorit menu with th	y Referen	ce		
	/ SAMS RIS submenu cor selected	Address nmand			

## VI. General Functionality for Key Buttons and Fields

This section of the manual discusses the repetitive functions, buttons, and fields that are constant throughout the SAMS program.

#### A. Key Buttons

The following example is the Key Buttons found on the SAMS RIS Address data table under Authority Reference menu. These buttons are almost on every screen within the application.

Below is a description of each button function.

Button Name	Description
Сору	Create a new record by copying a record that already exists.
<u>D</u> elete	Marks the selected record(s) for deletion by changing the font style to strike- through. Note that the row(s) are not actually deleted until the user presses the Save or Save Valid button.
<u>U</u> nDelete	Un-marks the selected record(s) for deletion by clearing the strike-through, font style.
Add	Creates a new empty record in the grid. The new record is always added at the end of the grid.
Validate	Checks each record that has been added or changed to ensure that information meets the specified business rules. An error screen will display information identifying where problems were discovered.
<u>S</u> ave	Validates and saves those records that passed the verification check, and displays the error screen identifying where problems were discovered. All records must pass validation before any record is saved.
Sav <u>e</u> Valid	Saves only those records that have passed the verification check. Records that do not pass validation remain in the grid and are highlighted with a gray background.
	Note: This button is useful only after the Validate button has been pressed.

<u>R</u> efresh	If any records have been added, changed, or marked for deletion, the user will be prompted to either save the changes, discard all changes, or cancel. After the user chooses to save or discard the changes, the entire screen is refreshed. This option is like exiting the screen and opening it back up.
E <u>x</u> it	If any records have been added, changed, or marked for deletion, the user will be prompted to either save the changes, discard all changes, or cancel. After the user chooses to save or discard the changes, the screen is exited.

#### B. Performing Data Entry/ Data Editing

When performing data entry or data editing in the different fields, the column headings that are highlighted (blue) can be edited. Fields with column headings not highlighted or grayish in color are not accessible for data entry or data editing. Also, when editing an existing field or adding an additional row to a table grid, the row being affected will display a grayish color. However, there are tables with fields that have drop down menus that allow for selecting from a pre-programmed list of data in SAMS. These fields have a down facing arrow indicated in the grid with the associated sub-table right below. See the example of SAMS Edit Transactions file below.



Tables that are too large to view all the data columns, use the horizontal scroll bar to scroll right to view the columns.



#### C. Selecting Data Records

When selecting a single record from a file, point to the left of the desired record grid and click on the left mouse button. The record that is selected should become highlighted with a selection arrow facing right of the selected record. See example below of a single selected record from the SAMS Edit Transactions file.



To select several consecutively records, select the first record by pointing to the left of the grid record and clicking on the left mouse button. Then, hold down the SHIFT key and click on the last record to be included in the selection. All the records between the first record selected and the last record selected should be highlighted. Notice the selection arrow facing right of the grid stays with the first record selected. See example below.



U.S. Department of Energy / U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Nuclear Materials Management & Safeguards System Operations Support Official Use Only To select several nonconsecutive records, select the first record by pointing to the left of the grid record and click on the left mouse button. To select additional records, press the CTRL key while clicking on the left mouse button for each additional record. All the records selected should be highlighted. Notice in performing this function the selection arrow stays on the last record selected. See example below.

	🔛 Transac	tion.TransferSeries	5					
	Ru	n 1						🔽 Exclude Historical Data
	Work Date	3/31/2008 11:42	:40 AM				Shipper RIS BXA	<b>•</b>
							Receiver RIS BXAA	•
	Series	) ReceiverRIS	ShipperRIS	TransferNumber	FiscalYear	<b>A</b>	The second secon	_
	1	BXAA	BXA	00990434	1977		Transfer Number 00990436	
	12	BXAA	BXA	00990435	1977		Fiscal Year 1977	
Nonconsecutive	29	BXAA	BXA	00990436	1977		riscar rear i ser	
selected records	<b>1</b>	BXAA	BXA	00990437	1977		ProcessPeriod	
	57	BXAA	BXA	00990438	1977			
	▶ 68	BXAA	BXA	00990439	1977	•		Load

To select several consecutive and nonconsecutive records, first select the consecutive records using the SHIFT key. Then, select the nonconsecutive records using the CTRL key. All the records selected should be highlighted. Notice in performing this function the selection arrow stays on the last record selected. See example below.



#### D. Changing, Reordering, and Removing Columns

To change the size of a column or remove a column in the table, move the cursor so that it is directly over the vertical line to the right of the column you want to resize or eliminate. When the cursor changes to a line with an arrow on both side, hold down the left mouse button and drag the column line to the desired location.

To eliminate a column, drag the line all the way to the end of the previous column. Once you have set-up the columns in the data table the way you want them, SAMS application will remember your preferences. The next time you access the program, the table will automatically appear in the format you last chose.

Note: This is dependent on each person's user ID and the workstation they are using. The settings do not automatically transfer to another workstation. To discard the format, close the window and select System from the menu bar and Restore Defaults. Select the type of restore default change you want to make from the list of Restore Defaults. This will reset the table to the original SAMS format. See System section of this manual for more information concerning Restore Defaults.

To reorder the data columns, move the cursor to the heading of the column you wish to move. The cursor should change to a downward-facing arrow. Click the mouse button to highlight the entire column. With the cursor in the heading of the column, hold down the mouse button and drag the column to the desired location. The heading of the column you are moving should be shown moving with the cursor. Also, a red arrow will indicate the new location of the column. The column will be inserted to the left of the red arrow.



#### E. Performing a data table split

Many data tables contain so much information they cannot be viewed in one window even after eliminating and resizing columns. Viewing all of the data requires scrolling through all of the columns. If you have several items in the table, it can be difficult to keep track of which row of data you need to review. To assist in this, you can "split" the data table. Splitting a table allows you to view specific columns of data at all times while still being able to scroll through the remaining columns. To split a data table, move the cursor until it is on the gray rectangle to the left of the left-facing arrow on the scroll bar. The cursor will change into a special cursor that has two short parallel lines with an arrow on each side. Hold down the mouse button and drag the cursor to the right. A single line will be displayed showing you where the data table will be split. When you have reached the desired split point, release the cursor. You can split a data table as many times as necessary. To remove the split, place the cursor on the split line. When the cursor changes into a special cursor and split line all the way to the left side of the table. The data table should return to its normal appearance.

taskbar once selected.



#### F. Selecting the Minimize, Restore Down, and Close window buttons

When selecting the minimize window button from the header bar, this function removes the current screen to the Windows taskbar. The active screen is displayed as a button while minimized on the taskbar and can return to full display by clicking on the screen button with the left mouse button. This function can be very useful, if you are working on more than one screen. See a parcel view of the header bar with the Minimize window button below and how the screen button appears on the Windows taskbar once minimized.

Shipper RIS BXA Receiver RIS BXAA	Exclude Historical Data	Minimize Window Button
	Safeguards Management Software (SAMS) - Databa	Connected To Server: (local)
🦉 Start   🧶 🕼 🤍 🎦 🖪 🔣 🕅 🤎	Ez di bareguards Management	snagit Capture Preview

When selecting the Restore Down window button from the header bar, this function restores a window to its previous size and location. The Restore Down button appears on the header bar as a rectangle slightly in front of another rectangle or double boxes. When the Restore Down button appears as one rectangle, this indicates the window has been reduced in size. Two rectangles displayed indicate the window is at full view. See below

a parcel view of the header bar with the Restore Down window button both at a full and reduce view.

scal¥e: ▲	Shipper RIS Receiver RIS	BXA BXAA	Exclude Histo	orical Data		Restore Down Window Button, one rectangle displayed indicates the window has been reduced in
			_ 6			
		F	Exclude Historical Data	ata		
Sh	ipper RIS BXA		•	T	wo rect	angles displayed indicate
Rec	eiver RIS BXAA				e wind	ow is at full view.

When selecting the Close window button from the header bar, this function closes the application and prompts you to save any unsaved changes before exiting.



# VII. Using Shortcut Menus

You can further manipulate data tables using a shortcut menu available in SAMS. Clicking the right-hand mouse button (often referred to as "right-clicking") in a window with a data table displays a shortcut menu. The shortcut menu commands allow you to go to a specific entry, paste information into new rows, sort the data, or restore the data table to its original form.

Goto Row #
Select All Records
Deselect All Records
Invert Selected Records
Paste
Filter
Find
Reset Filter
Sort Ascending
Sort Descending
Restore Defaults
Export
Print

The following paragraphs describe the shortcut menu commands and their use.

#### A. Goto Row # Command

The Goto Row # command is used to go to a specific line of data within a table. This can only be used if you know the number of the row of data you need to view. This command is most useful when working in the large tables. See example below where the Goto Row # command was used for the Authority Reference SAMS RIS Address file. Using the Goto Row # Command function

- 1. Right click the mouse button.
- 2. Select Goto Row # from the shortcut menu.
- 3. The Grid Control dialog box should appear, indicate the Goto Row # in the blank window.
- 4. Click the OK button.



#### B. Select, Deselect, and Invert Selected Records

These commands are used to select large amounts of data from a data table. The Select All Records command allows you to select all the rows of data displayed in the data table. To deselect the data once it is selected, you can either click in any column of the table or access the shortcut menu and click the Deselect All Records command. If you want to select most, but not all, records from the data table, you can select those records to be eliminated and then use the Invert Selected Records command. The previously highlighted items will be deselected, while the remaining data will be selected.

#### C. Paste Command

The Paste command allows you to paste a specific set of characters (referred to in SAMS as a string) into all selected rows. You can either type the string of characters into the field on the Paste String data field window or, before selecting paste, you can "copy" the characters you want to paste from one cell of the table by highlighting the characters and pressing CTRL + C. To paste the selected information into the paste string data field window, press the CTRL+V keys. Column fields that have drop down menus can also be use to paste data in selected columns. However, the information must come from the drop down menus selection. This is indicated by the down arrow to the right of the paste screen window.



#### To paste information into a column

- 1. Highlight the desired information and press the CTRL and C keys at the same time. (Optional. This is used if you do not want to type information into the paste string data field.)
- 2. Highlight the rows in which you wish to paste the data.
- 3. Click the right-hand mouse button to activate the shortcut menu. Ensure you are in the column in which you want to perform the paste.
- 4. Click the Paste command.
- 5. Click inside the paste string data field and press the CTRL and V keys at the same time to paste the data into the paste string data field. (Optional. This is used if you do not want to type information into the paste string data field.)
- 6. Click the paste button. The new data will be pasted into ALL rows of the selected column.

Note: No data is saved until the "Save" button is selected.

#### D. Filter

This menu option allows you to specify additional selection criteria to eliminate some of the data found during the first search of the database. For example, you can use the filter to eliminate data you no longer need and concentrate only on data you want to view.

#### To use a filter

- 1. Place the cursor anywhere in the column containing the data you wish to filter.
- 2. Click the right-hand mouse button. The shortcut menu will be displayed.
- 3. Select Filter from the shortcut menu. A dialog box will appear asking you to type in the filter for the column of data you have selected.
- 4. Type in the additional selection criteria for the data. For example, typing "BXAA" in the Filter window (shown in the following illustration) finds only items with a "BXAA" in the column. Any data other than "SC" is eliminated.
- 5. Click OK. Only the items that meet the filter criteria will now be shown in the data table.



#### E. Reset Filters

The Reset Filters command on the shortcut menu eliminates any filters you previously applied and displays all of the original data.

#### F. Find

The Find function locates the very first record in a table that meets the specified search criteria.

#### G. Sort Ascending and Sort Descending

This menu option allows you to sort the data in the table.

#### To sort the data

1. Place the cursor anywhere in the column containing the data you wish to sort.

2. Click the right hand mouse button. The shortcut menu will be displayed.

3. Select either Sort Ascending (e.g.,  $A \rightarrow Z$ ) or Sort Descending (e.g.,  $Z \rightarrow A$ ) from the shortcut menu. The data will be sorted automatically.

#### H. Restore Defaults

The restore defaults command returns the data table to its original form. This command is useful if you have eliminated or rearranged a data table and now wish to return it to its original state. Note that under the shortcut menu options that only the data table that is selected will be reset to the original form. This can be a sub-set of the screen that is being viewed.

#### I. Export

The Export function captures SAMS table grids and saves the information to other selected applications. The Export function is accessed by clicking on the right hand mouse button and selecting Export from the shortcut menu display.

#### J. Print

The Print function prints selected SAMS table grids to the specified printer. The Print function is accessed by clicking on the right hand mouse button and selecting Print from the shortcut menu display.

## VIII. Authority Reference

The Authority Reference menu provides the SAMS user the ability to create, edit and update information concerning the facility RIS Address through the Data Entry submenu. Once the RIS Address file is selected and opened, only the column headers that are highlighted can be manipulated. The SAMS RIS Address file has three editable columns RIS, License Number, and Replace. It also has a window that displays the address information associated with a given RIS. See example below of the screen file.

Note: When updating the facility information place a check mark in the Replace? column to update the RIS information. If you do not want the information changed leave the Replace? column box blank.

Accessing SAMS Autho 1. Click on the A 2. Click on the B 3. Click on the S	rity Reference file Authority Reference menu Data Entry / submenu to acce SAMS RIS Address data file	ess data file to view.		Can be changed to reflect updated information.
SAMSRISAddress	Number Replace?		1	
ACD           ALA           ALD           AUA           AUA           AVJ           AXB           BWDA           BWDG           BWDC           CAF           CAF           CAK           CCB           CCS           CZC           CZD           DAA           DZA           DZA	X X X X X X X X X X X X X X		Address THE LOVELACE INSTITUTES INHALATION TOXICOLOGY RE: BUILDING 9217, AREA Y KIRTLAND AFB, EAST ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87115	SEARCH INSTITUTE
<u>C</u> opy <u>D</u> e	elete <u>U</u> nDelete	<u>A</u> dd <u>V</u> alidate	<u>Save</u> Sav <u>e</u> Valid	<u>R</u> efresh <u>E</u> xit

The user has the option to update the Address information for a selected RIS if desired. This way the information can be updated if changes have occurred prior to the Authority Reference NMMSS data being updated from DOE-HQ. All changes must be Saved prior to exiting the screen.

The Authority Reference data will be published for updating the SAMS application on a routine basis.

# **IX.** Transactions

The Transaction menu option is used to enter information concerning transfers of nuclear material from one location to another which is generally submitted on a DOE/NRC form 741.

The Transactions menu function has four options that the user can select from. These options are Data Entry, Export Error-Free Transactions to XML, Move Transaction Records from Historical, and Reports. When the Data Entry submenu is selected, an additional two options are available to select. They are Data Entry/Process Transactions, and Data Entry/Edit Transactions.

The Export Error-Free Transactions to XML function captures all the transactions that have been cleared with no errors and exports the files into an XML file to be submitted to NMMSS.

The Move Transaction Records from Historical function allows the user to move the once closed transaction back to an active status for changes.

The Transactions Report submenu has two reports to select from which are 741 Simulated Report and TJ-002s Transaction Data Errors.

Safeguards Man Authority Reference	agement Software (SAMS) - Connected Transactions Inventory Material Balance	To <u>Server: (locai)</u> Databas System Utilities Exit	1. To access Transactions, click on Transactions
	Data Entry	Process Transactions	menu.
	Export Error-Free Transactions to XML	Edit Transactions	2. Select from Data
	Move Transaction Records from Historical		Entry, Export Error-
	Reports	•	Free Transactions to
		_	XML, Move
			Transaction Records
			from Historical, or Reports.

## A. Data Entry Transactions



### 1. **Process Transactions**

The Data Entry menu option for Process Transactions opens the screen view in which data can be processed and edited checked. For Process Transactions function, the following screen will appear concerning processing data. This function is used to import transaction data into SAMS.

When importing data, the screen below provides a Choose File browser button for selecting the data file to import.

🔡 Transaction I	Process Form		(	
Run Work Date	2 12/22/2008 3:30:21 PM			
		<u>_</u>		Select the Choose
				File browser button to import Transaction data file.
Γ		Choose File		
	Process	Exit		

To Import transaction XML datasets, click on the Choose File browser button from the transaction import screen and select the XML data file to import. The XML Dataset to Import file location screen will automatically display. Select the dataset to be imported by selecting it and then clicking on the open button.



Once the data file is selected and it appears in the Choose File window, click on the Process button to execute the data file import.

The transaction import process will automatically start processing the data, and saving each record associated with the dataset. A message will appear in the Import window indicating the import is complete (see example below of the Import process screen). You can scroll up and down the import window as the run is occurring to view the results.

🖳 Transaction Process Form	
Running Edit Checks	SAMS Transaction
Run 1	Import Process
Work Date 12/23/2008 2:34:40 PM	Screen
Starting Import Process 2:34:27 PM Import - BYC YLM00001180 Import - BYC YLM00001181 Import - YLM RUDL00000198 Import - YLM RUDL00000198 Import - YLM XCL00000067 Import - YLM YT000000012 Checking for duplicates 2:34:35 PM Checking for duplicatesCompleted 2:34:37 PM Saving Imported Data 2:34:37 PM Saving Imported Data Completed. 2:34:40 PM Archiving Import File 2:34:40 PM Archiving Import FileSuccessful. 2:34:40 PM	
12092008T1.xml	Choose File
Process	Exit

Immediately after the process import is complete, the TJ-002S Transaction Error Report screen will display for producing the error report. If there are more data files to import just click on the Exit button on the TJ-002S and repeat the import process.

If there are more transaction datasets to be imported repeat the Transactions import process. However, the Produce TJ-002S Report screen will appear for producing the TJ-002S report immediately after each process run (see example below of the TJ-002S produce report screen).

Note: Once the TJ-002S Produce Report button is selected it will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer for viewing and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

Select the Exit button on the Produce TJ-002S Report screen and return to the Transaction Import screen to process more XML datasets.



Note that if a TJ-002S Transaction Error report is generated with a No Data designation on page 2 of the report then there were no errors associated with the process run being conducted.

### 2. Run Transaction Edit Checks only

If new transaction data has been manually entered or existing data has been manually adjusted, the user **must** re-run the NMMSS Edit Check process using the Transaction Processing form by selecting the Process button without selecting a file to be imported.

A window will appear noting that no file has been selected and give the user the option to continue with the processing run (edit checks) or cancel and start over with the file selection process to import information.



### 3. Edit Transactions

The Edit Transaction option allows the user to view previously imported data loaded through the Process Transaction function or manually enter transaction data into the

system. To view existing data, the user must query the application to pull up the required records. In performing the Edit Transactions function you have the option of selecting the load button to generate the transaction records, or you may add / manually input the transactions record data in the various fields to be processed.

The Edit Transaction screen is divided into several sections as followed:

- 1. Filter and load data records section
- 2. Display of Transaction Series IDs information
- 3. Header records
- 4. Material, Obligation, Concise Notes, and 741 data

Note: Only column headings that are highlighted (Blue) can be edited. Once changes are made to a file, that particular file will gray out in the grid.



When actually viewing the screen, the number of columns or the column header width can be too large to view the entire file on the screen. Use the scroll bar or split screen to adjust the columns to your preference. The Edit Transactions screen below is shown in sections, so that the different data entry windows can been viewed.

There are several new functions that need to be reviewed. This is the Exclude Historical Data box along with several new buttons listed on the Transaction Edit screen as noted below.

Button Name	Description
Last Transfer #	After entering the Shipper and Receiver RIS in the filter press this button to determine the last transfer number utilized for the series.
Load	The load button retrieves all transfer series based upon the filters.
Print	The Print button produces the 741 for the selected header record(s). Note: Only one or two header records can be selected.

To view historical data, click inside the box to remove the check mark from the Exclude Historical Data box.

Note: File rows that are highlighted yellow in the table grids are considered historical data which cannot be modify even though the column headings are highlighted blue.

When adding files under Edit Transactions the Process period will be automatically updated to reflect the current process period.

The first portion of the screen display (upper right) provides drop down menu options to select the Shipper RIS and Receiver RIS performing the transaction. This is known as the Query selection section. After selecting the Shipper RIS and/or Receiver RIS click on the Load button to import the data into the Transfer Series window.

If you know the specific Transfer Number or Fiscal Year for a given transfer, you can enter that information in the Transfer Number and Fiscal Year windows. To generate the data, click on the Load button to populate the grids. The grids left of the data query section of the window will populate with the data pertaining to the Series ID, Shipper RIS, Receiver RIS, Transfer Number, and Fiscal Year.

Once the data is populated in the fields, select the record that you want to view or edit from the Transfer Series section. The row that is selected will be highlighted. If no row is selected or highlighted, the program will default to the first row of records from the Transfer Series section. The Header section is a child dependant to the first grid of Transfer Series data and is recognized as the Lower Grid. All of the column fields in the Header section that are highlighted blue can be edited. The Materials, Obligation, Concise Notes, and 741 Data tabs all have a child dependant relationship to the Header section. They are also recognized as the Lower Grid. The screen view below shows an example of the information and column headers pertaining to the Materials tab with the other tabs positioned in the background. To edit the other tabs just click the desired tab. All of the column headings associated with these tabs that are highlighted can be edited or updated. To edit data, click on the desired column field and record. When you need to add, delete, undelete, validate, save, refresh, copy, print or exit records utilize the key buttons located at the bottom and right of the grids.



Once the data is populated in the grids, select the record that you want to view. The row that is selected will be highlighted. If no row is selected or highlighted and the Header section is selected, the program will default to the first row of records from the above grid. The Header section is a child dependant to the first grid of data above and is recognized as the Lower Grid. All of the column fields with a blue Header tab can be edited or updated.

The Materials, Obligation, Concise Notes, and 741 Data tabs all have a child dependant relationship to the Header section above. They are also recognized as the Lower Grid.

The screen view below shows an example of the information and column headers pertaining to the Materials tab with the other tabs positioned in the background. To view the other tabs just click the desired tab. All of the column headings associated with these tabs that are highlighted can be edited or updated.

VersionID MaterialID LineNumber UseCode BatchNumber NumberOfftems Project CompCode Xcprod	code Ow 🔺	
▶ 9185 9197 1 71 0 101	J	
9185 9200 2 22 0 102	J	
	J <b>_</b>	
MaterialID ElementID ElementIDe ElementWeidt		
9197 9200 7,280,000000 0		
	Add	
	Delete	
Elementil IsotopelD IsotopeType MaterialType IsotopeWeight IsotopeLOE IsotopeWeightPerce		
▶ 9200 9203 81 0.0000000 0 0.0000000	UnDelete	
rocessCode NumberOfReportedLines NumberOfObligatedLines RunNumber RIS WorkDate ProcessID VersionID		
98 0 4 BYC 3/27/2008 9188 9185	T	
	P	rocess run error
	c	hecking results
ProcessID Error ID LineNumber ErrorDescription Exclude Erro	a	nd exclude errors
	0	ection
	5	cetton
	1	
Delete UnDelete Add Validate Save Refresh Print	Exit	

To add new records manually the user must select the Add button on the bottom of the screen. This will start a new Transaction series by adding a blank row to the bottom of the upper grid. After the transaction series information is entered for the new records then the user can use the Add buttons to the right of the Header and Detail line grids to add addition rows as needed dependent on the amount of data to be manually entered.

Any data entered into the screen is not added into the database until the Save button is selected.

The very bottom of the Edit Transactions window will display the results of the most current process run that has been conducted. If a transaction record has any edit check errors, they will be displayed on the screen in this location. If the user wants to override an edit check error, they have the option to exclude the error from being included in future process runs. This section will also display when data being adjusted no longer has errors.

NOTE: If any records are manually added or adjusted under the Transaction Edit screen function then the data is saved to the database, however, the data has not been reprocessed through the edit check function within SAMS yet. The Validate button does verify if there are any errors with the changes but the errors are not saved. The user will need to conduct another process run for the changes to be edit checked and the results updated within the database.

## B. Export Error-Free Transactions to XML

Export Error-Free Transactions contains data without edit check errors or data with errors that have been overridden (e.g.: excluded). The data can be exported to NMMSS using XML, and/or moved to the Historical files at the same time.

The Tag and Export to XML Error-Free Transaction Records screen below shows how the transaction data can be loaded by selecting the Shipper/Receiver RIS, Transfer Number and Fiscal Year information, and then clicking on the load button to generate the data.

Once the data is populated place a check mark in the Tag boxes for the transactions to be Exported to XML only, moved to Historical only, or perform Both actions at the same time by selecting the save button.

-	Гад & Ехр	ort to XML E	rror-Free Tra	insa	action	Records			
		Ship Rece Transfer	oper RIS BYC	2		_	•		
		Fis	cal Year						
Г	Series	ShipperRIS	ReceiverRIS		Vear	ActionCode	CorrectionNumber		
	5620	BVC	BVC		1077	M	concedoniumber		
E	8 5007	BYC	BYC	B	1077	M .			
	64.24	BYC	BYC		1077	M .			Click incide the Tee
	6158	BYC	BYC		1077	M			Click histoe the Tag
	6220	BYC	BYC		1077	M			box to place a check
	6320	BYC	BKRD		1077	A			mark for the
	6320	BYC	RKRD		1077	A			transactions that will
	6373	BYC	RKRD		1077	Δ		$\sim$	be exported only
	6373	BYC	RKRD	$\vdash$	1077	A			moved to historical
	6426	BYC	SVC		1077	Δ			moved to mstorical,
	6426	BYC	SVC		1977	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A			or both, then select
	6503	BYC	SVC		1977	8			the Save button to
	6503	BYC	SVC		1977	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A			complete the action.
	6520	BYC	SVC		1977	8			•
	6520	BYC	SVC		1977	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A			
	6608	BYC	VLI.		1977	8			
	8033	BYC	YLI		1977	B			
	6655	BYC	YLI		1977	Δ			
	6655	BYC	YLJ		1977	в			
	6672	BYC	YLM		1977	A			
	6672	BYC	YLM		1977	B			
	6713	BYC	YLM		1977	Α			
	1740	- Pice	20.84		4077	5			
<u>Ц</u>	•			1					
		C Export to	XML Only	0	Movel	to Historical On	ly 💿 Both		
	Load		Save			Refresh	Exit		

Once the Save button is selected and either the "Export to XML Only" radio button, or the "Both" radio button is selected you will be asked to save the 741 XML Dataset (see example below). However, if you select the "Move to Historical Only" radio button you will receive the Save Completed Ok message.



## C. Move Transaction Records from Historical

The Move Transaction Records from Historical screen allows the user to reassign a transaction record that has been placed into historical back to active. The screen below shows how the transaction data can be queried and loaded by selecting the Shipper/Receiver RIS, Transfer Number and Fiscal Year information; and then clicking on the load button to generate the data. If desired the user can leave the drop down windows blank and click the Load button to call up all historical records.

Once the historical data is populated, place a check mark in the Tag box for the transactions that need to be removed from the historical transaction files, and then select the Save button. There should appear a Save Completed Ok message immediately after.

	Move Histo	orical Transa	ctions				_ 🗆 🗵		
		Shipp	ber RIS	BYC		•			
		Receiv	/er RIS			-			
		Transfer N	lumber						
		Fina							
		FISC	arrear j						
Г	SeriesID	ShipperRIS	Receive	RIS TransferNumber	Ac	CorrectionNumber	Tag		
	5333	BYC	BYC	00991191	M			l r	
	5927	BYC	BYC	00991193	M				Click inside the Tag
	6131	BYC	BYC	00991195	М				boy to place a check
	6320	BYC	RKRD	00990049	А				box to place a check
	6373	BYC	RKRD	00990050	A				mark for the
	6373	BYC	RKRD	00990050	в				transactions that will
	6503	BYC	SYC	00990070	A				be removed from
	6520	BYC	SYC	00990071	в				historical files and
	6655	BYC	YLJ	00990295	A				instorical files, and
	6748	BYC	YLM	00990509	A				then click Save to
	6986	BYC	YLM	00990511	A				complete the
					_				
	Loa	d	Sav	e Refre	sh	Exit			

## D. Transactions Reports

The SAMS Transactions Reports consist of the 741 Simulated Report, the TJ-001 – Daily Transaction Data report, and the TJ-002S – Transaction Data Errors report.

To access a report, select the Transactions and Report submenu option, then select the desired report that you want to run.



Note: Internet Explorer provides the user the option to allow or not allow Active Content updates when displaying reports. The user needs to ensure that the SAMS system is set to allow active content updates or the XML report formats will not be correct and the printed or viewed report will be shifted.

### 1. 741 Simulated Report

The 741 Simulated Report menu option allows the application user to generate a transaction report in the DOE/NRC Form 741 format.

The 741 Simulated Report screen below shows an example view of all the transactions in the SAMS system. To generate the list of the current and historical transactions the user must click on the Load button. The Series ID, Shipper RIS, Receiver RIS, Transfer Number, and Fiscal Year information for all the transactions will appear. The upper section if the screen displays the transaction series only. Once a series is selected, the lower section will display all action codes associated with that series.

Transactions that appear highlighted as yellow are historical transactions, and they can not be edited, or accessed in the 741 Simulated report. However, all other transactions can be viewed and printed through the report function.

Once the transactions are populated in the screen, click on the transactions to view through the DOE/NRC 741 form. Place a check mark in the Print box and click on the Print button to generate the 741 report form. The 741 report form will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the 741 form, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

Rev. 3 July 12, 2018 Page 66 of 112

5373	ShinnerDIS	DeceiverDIS	TransferNumber	FiecalVear			
	BYC	RKRD	00990050	1977			-
3426	BYC	SYC	00990069	1977			
3503 J	BYC	SYC	00990070	1977			
3520	BYC	SYC	00990071	1977			
3567 0	BYC	VYD	00990157	1977			
3608	BYC	YEJ	00990294	1977			
3655	BYC	YLJ	00990295	1977			
672	BYC	YLM	00990490	1977			
5713 I	BYC	YLM	00990508	1977			
6748 <mark> </mark>	BYC	YLM	00990509	1977			
843	BYC	YLM	00990510	1977			
986 <mark> </mark>	BYC	YEM	00990511	1977			
269	BYC	YUD	00990049	1977			
286	BYC	YUD	00990050	1977			
303 0	BYC	YUD	00990051	1977			
227	BYC	YUD	00990319	1977			
248	BYC	YUD	00990320	1977			
314	FZEH	ZIB	00990525	1977			
329 /	FZJH	YTI	00990007	1977			
340 /	FZJH	YTI	00990008	1977			
363	HTA	VTA	00990589	1977			
374	JSG	CCS	00990004	1977			
380	ORKH	ORKH	009911DX	1977			
403	ORKH	VAB	00990892	1977			
414	ORKH	VAB	00990893	1977			
425	ORKH	VAB	00990896	1977			
436	ORKH	VDM	00990489	1977			
447	ORKH	VDM	00990490	1977			
Print Prin	nt Blank Line	es Other Side	Action Code Cor	rectionNumber	ActionCode	ActivityDate	ForAcce
					A	11/30/2004	
					D	44 00 0004	

Note: When selecting transactions to view and print for the 741 Simulated report function there are several options to select from such as, Print, Print Blank Lines, Other Side Action Code, and Distribution list (see example of 741 report form below).



DOI (5-2) MAR AUT Publ	BINIRC FORM 741 302) Prestous editio IDATORY DATA CO HORIZED BY 10 CI NORZED BY 10 CI IC Laws 83-703, 93	ns are ( ) LLECT FR 30, ( +438, 95	absoleke. 10 M 40, 50, 70 591. NUC	1, 72, 7 +, 75, 150. LEAR MAT	ERIAL T	RANSAG	U.S. CTIO	U.S. DEPAR NUCLEAR RE N REPORT	TMENTO AND SULATOR	F EN ERG	iy Nissio	A MECORA	APPR( Es Ima eports T-6 E6 filcer, neans nd a p	DVED Inalisi 5, U.S. 0 filce used l erson	BY C rden p how ch Mucle of Ind Is not	MB: N er resp anges ar Reg ormatio ose an require	IO. 3 150–0003 onse lo comply w In Inveniory of nu utalory Commissi nand Regulalory Information collec d lo respond lo, 1	(In Inis Idear) Ion, W Affairs Cilon & Fe Inf8	s manifalory malerials . S Jashing lon, s, N EO 8-10 loes noi dis ormation coi	( collectio lend com DC 2055 202, (319 play a cu llection.	n reque menis r 5-0001, 0-0003 meniy s	es I: 45 minu eganding bu or by Inlema ), Office of N alid OMB co	les . T iden e ile-ma lanage initol i	This information is estimate to the Re all to infocotiects ement and Budge number, the NRC	E) required cords Ma @nrc.gow I, Washin may noti	PIRE for IAI nager , and g lon, condu	ES: 05 IEA active Ionen IB Ione Ione 20 Ione 20 Ione 1	/3 1/2005 counting /ranch Desk )503. If a ponsor,
	1.2HETEK2.F22		3. FREERIN	8152 B2	1 WANDAR	TON NO.	4	COPPER DON NO.		8. PRO1	#228-0 CO	DBI					E ACTION CODE					2.0003.88	NMER	i jihiy if document in classified 20	(1991)	_		
	BXA		BX	AA	00990	446			ADDITES		A FRICE	nas 🖌	A,	a. 21	HETEK.		A RECEIVES	в	PACER	1 =	1	PAGE2	1208*	Y DF COFWE		28.93	F25	
B.a. No. DP 1	AFANDADDF#22 HETER	h LEPH21 NO.			ILA HALME ALME OF FREICHTV	ADDRESS	h LETRING NO.				10.1431	P DATA LINE	25		1				LINER OF THE	NEACTER					ND.	DECT	WALTERN D	AP COPIES
U.\$	. ENRICHMEN	IT CO	RPOR.	ATION	U.S. E	NRICHME	ENT C	ORPORATIO	DN		12.a.2P	FTED FOR A	CONTRACTOR NO.	OP .	h.F	81			DA DEPTYD 10 A	CCONN1 OF		in. P225			- 1 -	_		
PO PL/ PIP	RTSMOUTHG/ NT,P.O.BO (ETON OH 45	ASEO X 628 661	US DIF	FUSION	PORTS 0. BO PIKET	MOUTH ( 628 ON OH 4	GASE) 45661	DUS DIFFU	SION PL	ANT , F															2			
n ATE	DAVID A S	SHISL	.ER		» ATENDO	DAVID A	A SHIS	SLER																	- 4			
« 1814	recent (740) 897	-2182			« TELEPHONE	(740)89	97-218	2																				
14,199	NUMERAL DESIGNATION OF A DESIGNATIONO OF A DESIGNATIONO OF A DESIGNATIONO OF A DESIGNATIONO OFFA DESIGNATI	EM DEMPT,	OF OF REAL	ALC: N								TA ROPORT	TOP: MPO	PCI WALKIN	HE F.C. 1173	NUMBER OF												
												Ļ													2			
10.000												17. LINE		18	N DP		TR. BAN, THE PLANE.		2L DRAFIN THE		084	21. EX.TED ELETEPH IVEEH1						
												LIMBE		DELIDA	NON.	_	TIPE	_	FLEMENTINE	GH1	Park	wished Lisesian Delp	_				-	
													-			_		+					_	20. A.C. BON DA	-34	144	0 (00)	10000
Б	1	C .1.	D							-			-			_		_					_	a 2HIP5/01/1		+	_	+
EX	ample of	r th	e D	UE/INF	(U			A CONCERNITY ATMO	180				-			+		+						A 2HETEK 2 COPPECTOR		+	-	10004
7	1 1									4 –	_	-	-			-		+						s. PRESERV1		-11	30	2004
14	I Form	1						s. LR. FREPORTABLE?		18.0	10	-	-			+		+					_		1941 N	+	+	+
												⊢			~									0				
							NO. OP	FED.#	151	MCTR:	COMPL	24 TOTAL D	NET N	нант И	U FAX. EPP	3	05003.048941		E1VERH1	PLEM	E TOTAL VOL RIVI	EMELORIA Transfer	Crep!	U DEDETSJETE	8.012		_	R.OTOPH
	LARKS.		DHANGE:				THEMS	1.1.100	R PC	FIML TYPE	NUCLITY CODE	1220.041	POINT		h.					128.0	9-1	LIMITOP REPROPS		BOTOPH	1/4/03	HT.		EMITOR REPORT
					4			E.				- k		T RANKER	2	1 ME10-000			-									
		1	74				0			10	103	L					0		0		1		0	0.56		(	a	0
26.														_	$\rightarrow$												-	
Ê																												
PPE																												
Ro																												
8													-	-	-								_				+	
ΓA											<u> </u>		-	-+	$\rightarrow$			-									+	
															$\rightarrow$			<u> </u>									—	
^	266	SHIPPE	ER'S DAT	A	SIGNATUR	EOFAUTH	ORIZED	OFFICIAL AND	DATESIG	WED		٧١	v		27 6.	RECE	VER'S DATA			SIGNA"	TUREO	FAUTHOR	EED (	OFFICIAL AND DA	TESIGI	IED		
		1					0			10	103	J					0		0		1		0	0.56		0	D	0
14																												
22														-	+												+	
ŝ										-	<u> </u>	+	-	+	+			<u> </u>									+	
< m											<u> </u>	+		$\rightarrow$	+			<u> </u>									+	
78 DA:										+	-	+	-+	$\dashv$	+			-								—	+	
TA										+			-	+	+			<u> </u>									+	
										-	<u> </u>	+		$\rightarrow$	+			-				<u> </u>					+	
																										_		
10	ARNING: FALSE ST Dimakes it a cr	MINAL	ENTS IN Offens	THIS CERTIFICA E TO MAKE A WI	TE MAY BE	SUBJECT TO SESTATE	O CIVIL MENTO	R REPRESENT	INAL PENA Tation to	ANY DE	RC REG PARTMI	ENTOR	NG RE AGEN	EQ UIR ICY O	ETHA	UNITE	IMISSIONS TO TI ED STATES AS T	HE NF TO AN	Y MATTER	WITHIN	ND AC	CURATE IN RISDICTION	ALLI C	MATERIAL RESP	ECTS, 1	8 U.S.	C SEC	атю н

### 2. TJ-001 – Daily Transaction Data

The TJ-001 – Daily Transaction Data report allows the user to display transactions that have been entered into the application based the input for a give daily run.

Once the report processing screen appears, there are several options that are available for selecting information to run a report. These options consist of several dropdown options in the screen header for Report Level, Responsible RIS, Frequency and Report Destination. In the lower columns the user has the option to enter the RIS, Run number and Run Date. It is recommended that the user always enter a RIS into the Responsible RIS and lower RIS parameters. This way the application does not attempt to pull all of the open RIS transactions in the entire SAMS database. It is also recommended that the Run Number be left at zero (0) and the Run Date be left Blank. This way all of the open (non-historical) transactions will be displayed on the report.

•	TJ-001														
R	eport Level	Respor	sible RIS			Freque	ency	F	Report Destin	ation					
E	AC 💌				•	REQ	1	<b>.</b> [	PRINT	•	Save Blank R	eport			
	ParameterName	Promot	DataType	DataSize	Reno	rtlise	DefaultVa	lue (	OrderBy		 				
	RIS	RIS	C	4	BOTH		*	1	1	-					
ŕ	Run Number	RUN N	N	3	BOTH	1	0	2	2						
	RunDate	RUN D	D	10	BOTH	1		3	3						
												Produce F	Report	E	ixit

If the user only wants the information that they have just entered into the system then they can enter the Run Number and Run Date into the report filters in the lower section of the report generation screen.

The Run Number and Run Date are also located at the bottom of the Transaction Edit screen. The top of the Transaction Edit screen displays what the next process run number would be on a given day. This is the information that the user would enter into the TJ-001 report filters if desired.

		1	Next Run N	Jumber for tod	ay		
🖶 Transaction.Transf	erSeriess						
Run 2 • Work Date 12/29/	2008 11:00:18 AM			Shipper RIS		Exclude	Historical Data
SeriesID 253 265 ▶ 1 10 19 【 ↓	ShipperRIS         Ret           YLM         YTC           YNC         YNC           YNI         YLM           YNI         YLN           YNI         YLN           YNI         YLN	eiverRIS Trans 000000 000000 0000000 0000000 0000000 0000	fertiumb     ▲       012     ▲       104     ↓       063     ▼       066     ▼	Fiscal Year		Last Transf	er #
SeriesID VersionII 1 2	CorrectionNumber E	ActionCode Vers	ionS NumberofL 1	ines TICode ForAcco FZF	FZF	nt Transfer	Add Delete UnDelete
VersionID Materi 2 7 1 1 MaterialID Eleme 7 8	allD LineNumber Use	Code BatchNum 440-DLEU-0 ementWeight 839,03	ber Nu 94 9 Elema 2.0000000 0	mberOfitems Project FNN600	2014 409	Code Xcprod	Code Owne G Add
ElementiD Isoto	pelD IsotopeType	MaterialType I 20	<mark>sotopeWeight</mark> 41	439.000000 0	LOE IsotopeW 4.9390000	eightPercer	Delete UnDelete
ProcessCode Num A 1 ProcessID Error ID	berOfReportedLines	Number Of Obligat	edLines Runtlun	nber RIS WorkDate YLM 12/17/2008	Processi 3	D Version 2 )	
Delete	UnDelete A	dd	Dun Ni	umbor & Dun ]	Dete	rint	Exit

To generate a report, click on the Produce Report button. The report will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

### 3. TJ-002S – Transaction Data Errors

The TJ-002S report is a SAMS specific report that lists out the errors that have been identified for NMMSS transactions that have been entered into the system and processed through a daily run.

Once the TJ-002S report screen appears, the only section available for selecting information to run is through the drop down header menu for Report Level, Responsible RIS, Frequency and the lower column grid for Default Value. See example of the TJ-002S Report screen below.

To generate a report, click on the Produce Report button, ensure you have selected the correct criteria in the drop down header menu and the default value field. The report will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

	TJ-0025									
	Report Level		Responsible	e RIS		Frequ	ency			
	HDQ 🔻		QFA		-	REQ	<b>•</b>			
Г	ParameterName	Prompt	DataType	DataSize	Repor	rtUse	DefaultValue			
ΙŰ	•									►
								Produce Report	Exit	

# X. Inventory

The SAMS Inventory menu function has four options that the user can select from. These options are Data Entry, Export Error-Free Inventory Records to XML, Move Inventory Records from Historical, and Reports

🔜 Safeguards Manageme	ent Software (SAM	1S) - Connected To Ser	ver: (local)	Database: SAMS
Authority Reference Transa	actions Inventory	Material Balance System	i Utilities E	xit
<ol> <li>To access Inventory, click on the Inventory menu.</li> <li>Select from the four menu options for Inventory.</li> </ol>	Data Ent Export En Move Inv Reports	ry rror-Free Inventory Recor ventory Records from Histo	ds to XML prical	

## A. Data Entry Inventory

When the Data Entry is selected a submenu of three inventory options are available to the system user. They are Data Entry/Process Inventory, Edit Inventory, and Delete Inventory.

🔛 Safeguards Man	agement Sof	tware (SAI	MS) - Connected	l To Serv	er: (local	)	Database: SAMS
Authority Reference	Transactions	Inventory	Material Balance	System	Utilities	Exi	t _
		Data En	try			١	Process Inventory
		Export B	Error-Free Invento	ry Records	s to XML		Edit Inventory
		Move In	iventory Records fi	rom Histor	ical		Delete Inventory
		Reports				<u>۱</u>	

### 1. **Process Inventory**

The Data Entry menu option for Process Inventory opens the screen view in which data is processed and edit checked. For the process inventory function, the following screen will appear concerning processing inventory data. This function is used to import inventory data into SAMS.

When importing data, the screen below provides a Choose File browser button for selecting the data file to import.

🔛 Inventory	Process I	Form					
Ru Work Da	ın 1 te 12/3	0/2008 9:43:32 A	м				
					*	F	
					F		Select the Choose File browser button to import Inventory data file.
				<u>C</u> hoose File	]		
	<u>P</u> ro	cess		E <u>x</u> it	]		

To import inventory XML datasets, click on the Choose File browser button from the inventory import screen and select the XML data file to be imported. The XML Dataset to Import file location screen will automatically display. Select the dataset to be imported by selecting it and then clicking on the open button.
Select the 742C X	XML dataset to Import	?×
Look in:	🔁 Inv 💌 🗢 🖻 📸 -	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	Duplicate.xml Invalid for Load.xml Valid.xml	
My Network	File name: Valid.xml	)pen
Places	Files of type: DP742C Dataset (*.xml)	ancel

Once the data file is selected and it appears in the Choose File window, click on the Process button to execute the data file import.

The inventory import process will automatically start processing the data, and saving each record associated with the dataset. A message will appear in the Import window indicating the import is complete (see example below of the inventory Import process screen). You can scroll up and down the import window as the run is occurring to view the results.

🔜 Inventory Process Form	
End checking 899 totals and Valid Sequence Numbers Run 1 Work Date 12/30/2008 10:19:58 AM	
Saving Imported DataCompleted. 10:19:57 AM Archiving Import File 10:19:57 AM Archiving Import FileSuccessful. 10:19:58 AM Starting Import ProcessCompleted 10:19:58 AM Import Total Processing Time 8 seconds Starting find data 10:19:58 AM Find data complete 10:19:58 AM Find data for edit checks total time Starting Edit Checks 10:19:58 AM Saving Edit Checks 10:19:58 AM Saving Edit Checked Data 10:20:15 AM Saving Edit Checked Data 10:20:15 AM Edit Check Record Count Total Records Checked: 174 Total Records In Error: 4 Edit ChecksCompleted 10:20:15 AM	This example shows the data being imported and edited checked at the same time.
11110804I2.xml     Choose F       Process     Exit	file

Immediately after the process import is complete, the I-002S Inventory Error Report screen will display for producing the error report. If there are more data files to import just click on the Exit button on the I-002S and repeat the inventory import process.

If there are more inventory datasets to be imported, repeat the Inventory import process. However, the Produce I-002S Report screen will appear for producing the I-002S report immediately after each process run (see example below of the I-002S produce report screen).

Note: Once the I-002S Produce Report button is selected it will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer for viewing and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

Select the Exit button on the Produce I-002S Report screen and return to the Inventory Import screen to process more XML datasets.



Note that if an I-002S Inventory Error report is generated with a No Data designation on page 2 of the report then there were no errors associated with the process run being conducted.

### 2. Run Inventory Edit checks only

If new inventory data has been manually entered or existing data has been manually adjusted, the user **must** re-run the NMMSS Edit Check process using the Inventory Processing form by selecting the Process button without selecting a file to be imported.

A window will appear noting that no file has been selected and give the user the option to continue with the processing run (edit checks) or cancel and start over with the file selection process to import information.

SELECT IMPORT FILE?	×
NO IMPORT FILE HAS BEEN SELECTED. PRESS OK TO CONTIUE WITH DAILY RUN. PRESS CANCEL TO RETURN AND SELECT AN IMPORT FILE BEFORE CONTINUING WITH THE DAILY RU	JN.
OK Cancel	

### 3. Edit Inventory

The Edit Inventory option allows the user to view previously imported data loaded through the Process Inventory function or manually enter inventory data into the system. To view existing data, the user must query the application to pull up the required records. In performing the Edit Inventory function, you have the option of selecting the load button to generate the inventory records, or you may add / manually input the inventory record data in the various fields to be processed.

The Edit Inventory screen is divided into several sections as followed:

- 1. Filter and load data records section
- 2. Edit Inventory window
- 3. Material, Concise Notes, and 742C data
- 4. Process Detail information

Note: Column headings that are highlighted (Blue) can be edited. Once changes are made to a file, that particular file will gray out in the grid.



The first portion of the screen display (upper right) provides drop down menu options to select the RIS and inventory data related to what is desired to be retrieved. This is known as the Query selection section. After selecting the inventory period RIS the user must also enter a data range of the inventory period desired. If a Start date and End Date is not entered into the Query option, then no data will be retrieved and displayed. The user also has the option to include additional filters related to the Material Type, Generic Material Type, or Sequence Number ranges to further filter the data being called up.

Once the desired filters are entered the user must select the Load button for the information to be retrieved from the database and displayed on the screen. To view

historical inventory data, click inside the box to remove the check mark from the Exclude Closed Inventory Data box.

Note: Data rows that are highlighted yellow in the table grids are considered historical or closed data which cannot be modify even though the column headings are highlighted blue.

Once the data is populated in the fields, select the record that you want to view or edit from the Inventory Period section. The row that is selected will be highlighted. If no row is selected or highlighted, the program will default to the first row of records from the Inventory Period section. The Material, Concise Notes, and 742C section is a child dependent to the first grid of Inventory Period data and is recognized as the Lower Grid. All of the column fields in the Inventory Edit screen that are highlighted blue can be edited.

To add new records manually the user must select the Add button on the bottom of the screen. This will start a new Inventory Period series by adding a blank row to the bottom of the upper grid. After the Inventory Period information is entered for the new records then the user can use the Add button to the right of the Material grids to add addition detail rows as needed dependent on the amount of data to be manually entered.

Any data entered into the screen is not added into the database until the Save button is selected. The Edit Inventory screen will automatically refresh once the data is saved.

There are three Edit Inventory tabs: Material, Concise Notes, and 742C associated with the Inventory Edit screen. Below are screen view examples of each tab and the various column headings of information related to that particular tab.

To edit data within a tab, just click on the desired tab. All column headings associated with the tabs that are highlighted can be edited or updated. To edit data, click on the desired record and column field. When you need to add, delete, undelete, validate, save, refresh, or exit records, utilize the key buttons located at the bottom of the screen. Also, when adding a new file use the add button at the bottom of the screen. The added row will appear in the Edit Inventory window. When modifying information for the Material, Concise Notes, and 742C tabs utilize the side buttons (Add, Delete, Undelete, Copy and Paste).

### **Edit Inventory Material Tab**

Mat	erial Cor	ncise Notes	742C										
	Invento	vPeriodD	MaterialID	CompCode	OwnerCode	cccn	Project	Scra	ANSIScrapCode	cuea	prod	cui 🔺	1
	190956		9636124	100	J								1
	190956		9636137	104	G		FCD010201T						1
	190956		9636161	100	J								
	190956		9636170	100	J							-	I
14													1
													í.
	Materia	Depended		t lype Elem	entweight	0.0000000					Ac	id	L
-	9030124	9030125	,			9.0000000							1
											Del	ete	L
													1
											UnDe	elete	L
	Element	tID Isotope	eID Isotope	Type	MaterialType	GenericMa	terialType						4
	9636125	9636126	3	1	16	10					Co	οu	1
													1
l la	1										Pa	ste	1
											1.0		J

#### **Edit Inventory Concise Notes Tab**

Ma	erials Concise Notes 742C					
Г	InventoryPeriodD	MaterialID	EntryReference	LineNumber	ConciseNoteText	
	172838	0	1111111111111	1	aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa	
	172838	0	1111111111111	2	aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa	
	172838	0	1111111111111	3	aaaaaqaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa	
					4	Add
						Delete
						UnDelete
Ш	•					

### Edit Inventory 742C Tab

InventoryPeriodD	MaterialID	ElementID	IsotopeID	MaterialType	CompCode	ElementWeight	IsotopeV	
190956 N	9636124	9636125	9636126	16	100	9.000000		
190956 パ	9636137	9636138	9636139	11	104	8,556.0000000		
190956	9636161	9636162	9636163	81	100	7,693.000000		Add
190956	9636170	9636171	9636172	81	100	7,693.0000000		
190956	9636174	9636175	9636176	11	104	6,488.0000000		Dolate
190956	9636178	9636179	9636180	11	104	8,571.0000000		Delete
190956	9636182	9636183	9636184	11	104	8,559.0000000		UpDolo
190956	9636186	9636187	9636188	11	104	8,559.0000000		UNDER
190956	9636190	9636191	9636192	11	104	8,558.0000000		C
190956	9636194	9636195	9636196	11	104	6,427.0000000		сору
190956	9636198	9636199	9636200	11	104	6,488.0000000		
								Paste

#### **Inventory Process Detail**

The very bottom of the Edit Inventory window will display the results of the most current process run that has been conducted. If an inventory record has any edit check errors, they will be displayed on the screen in this location. The process detail section provides information concerning the Process ID, Error ID, Line Numbers, Error Description and Exclude Error option, etc.

If the user wants to override an edit check error they have the option to exclude the error from being included in future process runs. This section will also display when data being adjusted no longer has errors.

S	ubmittedBy	ReportedBy	/RIS Statu	ıs RunNumber	Ris	WorkDate	ProcessID	IntentoryPeriodD	MaterialID	Seque
				1	BYC	3/24/2006	10	172833	7993057	361
•										
_										
P	rocessID	Error ID	LineNumber	ErrorDescription						Exclude Error
<ul> <li>10</li> </ul>	)	101	0	COMP CODE For com	bination ri	s,inventory date	and material type,	a record with comp code 899 i	nust exist.	✓
10	)	83	0	ISO WT Verification is	made thr	ough the Materia	l Type Authority F	ile that either or both weight fiel	ds are applic	
•1										
_										
									1	
									1	
									1	

The process detail section provides information concerning the inventory error description and it allows the option of checking the exclude error box to save the inventory with the error noted. This will also allow the inventory to be closed / moved to historical file with the error noted. However, each time the opened inventory is processed, the error should be noted in the error description.

NOTE: If any records are manually added or adjusted under the Inventory Edit screen function then the data is saved to the database, however, the data has not been reprocessed through the edit check function within SAMS yet. The Validate button does verify if there are any errors with the changes but the errors are not saved. The user will need to conduct another process run for the changes to be edit checked and the results updated within the database.

#### 4. Delete Inventory

The Delete Inventory function will allow you to select several inventory records to delete at one time, or you can delete one inventory period record at a time. However, once a record is deleted it is removed from the system.

Select the RIS inventory to be deleted by typing the RIS name in the RIS query window, or clicking on the drop down and selecting from the list of valid RIS names. Once the RIS is selected, click on the Load Inventory button, or you may elect to filter all the RIS by leaving the RIS window blank and clicking on the Load Inventory button.

The inventory information concerning that particular RIS should appear in the lower grid window (Inventory Period ID, RIS, Generated Data, Inventory Date, and Delete Inventory). Click in the Delete Inventory box to place a check mark identifying the RIS's inventory period for deletion, then click on the Delete Inventory button to delete the inventory.

If you loaded all the RIS but only want to delete certain ones, place a check mark in the Delete Inventory boxes to delete. Once the RIS is deleted, the Delete Inventory screen will appear with a message indicating "Deletes Completed." The inventory selected for deletion will no longer appear in the Delete Inventory window.

InventoryPeriod		Load I Delete I	RIS	
InventoryPeriodi 5310		Load I Delete I	nventory nventory xit	
InventoryPeriodi 5310		Load I Delete I	nventory nventory xit	
InventoryPeriodi 5310		Load I Delete I	nventory nventory xit	
InventoryPeriod 5310		Delete		
InventoryPeriod		E	nventory xit	
InventoryPeriod		E	xit	
InventoryPeriod		E	xit	
InventoryPeriod				
InventoryPeriod				
5310	U RIS Gene	ratedData InventoryDate	Delete Inventory	
5407	CAK	11/30/2005		
3427	CCA	11/30/2005	<b>v</b>	
5348	CCB	11/30/2005		
5402	FBF	11/30/2005		
5338	FCC	11/30/2005		
5320	YUD	11/30/2005	×	
5343	ZAQ	11/30/2005		
7 5357	ZPL	11/30/2005	¥	

Not that the Inventory Delete screen option only allows the user to delete the entire inventory period. If the user desires to delete detail inventory information (lines of data within a given period) then they need to go to the Inventory Edit screen option.

# B. Export Error-Free Inventory Records to XML

Export Error-Free Inventory Records contains data with no edit check errors or data with errors that have been overridden (e.g.: excluded). The data can be exported to NMMSS using XML, and/or moved to the Historical files at the same time.

The tag and export to XML error-free inventory records screen below shows how the inventory data can be loaded by selecting the desired RIS along with the start date and end date range for the data to be retrieved, and then clicking on the load button to generate the data.

Once the data is populated place a check mark in the tag boxes for the inventory records to be exported to XML only, moved to historical only, or perform both actions at the same time by selecting the save button.

🔜 Tag & Export to XML Error-F	Free Inventory Records	_ <b>_ _</b> ×	1
Start D End D InventoryPeriodD RIS	RIS Date Date GeneratedData InventoryDate	Image: DateClosed     Tag	
123 ACD 93 FBF 11 YUD 34 ZAQ ↓ 48 ZPL C Export to >	11/30/2005       1	Both	Click inside the Tag box to place a check mark for the inventory records that will be exported only, moved to historical, or both, then select the Save button to complete the action

Once the save button is selected and either the "Export to XML Only" radio button, or the "Both" radio button is selected you will be asked to save the 742C XML dataset (see example below). However, if you select the "Move to Historical Only" radio button you will receive the save completed ok message.

Name of the 7420	C XML Datasetse	t		<u>? ×</u>	
Save in:	ExportedXML		💌 🗧 🗈 🖝 📰	•	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	<ul> <li>INV200803271</li> <li>INV200804031</li> <li>INV200804031</li> <li>INV200804040</li> <li>INV200804040</li> <li>Test.xml</li> <li>TR200803271:</li> <li>TR200803271:</li> <li>TR200803271:</li> <li>TR200803271:</li> <li>TR200804010:</li> <li>TR200804010:</li> <li>TR200804010:</li> </ul>	351181.xml 303091.xml 347041.xml 838481.xml 839352.xml 246541.xml 330302.xml 337054.xml 749271.xml 758042.xml 302153.xml			Example concerning Exporting and saving 742C XML
My Network Places	File name: Save as type:	Test 1 DP742C Dataset (*.xml)	<b>v</b>	Save Cancel	Dataset. 1. Provide file name and identify where to save file 2. Click Save
Export to C:\	Program Files\W	/SRC\SAMS Application\f	ExportedXML\Test 1.xn	A <del>l Saccessful</del>	<ol> <li>Click Ok for the file address</li> <li>Click Ok for Save Completed</li> </ol>
Save Save Complet	ted.				

# C. Move Inventory Records from Historical

The Move Inventory Records from Historical screen allows the user to reassign an inventory record that has been placed into historical back to active. The screen below shows how the inventory data can be queried and loaded by selecting the RIS, Start Date and End Date information; and then clicking on the Load button to generate the data. If desired the user can leave the drop down windows blank and click the Load button to call up all historical records.

Once the historical data is populated, place a check mark in the Tag box for the inventory records that need to be removed from the historical inventory files, and then select the Save button. There should appear a save completed ok message immediately after.

	Move Historical In	ventor	y .			
			RIS		-	
		Start	Date		•	
		End	Date		•	
ŀ	123	D RIS	GeneratedData	InventoryDate	DateClosed	
l F	11	YUD		11/30/2005	4/4/2008	
	Ø 48	ZPL		11/30/2005	4/4/2008	
						Click inside the Tag
						box to place a check
						mark for the inventory
						records that will be
						removed from
						historical files and
						the set of
						then click Save to
						complete the action.
				/		
			*			
	Load	1	Sava	Befrech	Ewit	1
		]	Jave	nellesh	2 XI	

# D. Inventory Reports

The SAMS Inventory Reports are I-002S – Inventory Data Errors Report and 742C Simulated Report.

To access a report, click on Inventory and Reports submenu and then select the I-002S – Inventory Data Errors report, or the 742C Simulated Report.



Note: Internet Explorer provides the user the option to allow or not allow Active Content updates when displaying reports. The user needs to ensure that the SAMS system is set to allow active content updates or the XML report formats will not be correct and the printed or viewed report will be shifted.

### 1. I-002S – Inventory Data Errors

The I-002S report is a SAMS specific report that lists out the errors that have been identified for NMMSS inventories that have been entered into the system and processed through a daily run.

Once the I-002S report screen appears, the processing selections available for selecting information to run is through the drop down header menu for Report Level, Responsible RIS, Frequency and the lower column grid for RIS and Inventory Date. See example of the I-002S Report screen below.

To generate an inventory report, click on the Produce Report button, ensure you have selected the correct criteria in the drop down header menu and lower parameter fields. The report will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

🛃 I-0025						_ 🗆 ×
Report Level	Resp	onsible RIS	Frequ	ency		
HDQ	QFA		▼ REQ	-		
ParameterName	Prompt Data1	ype DataSize	ReportUse	DefaultValue	OrderBy	
RIS InventoryDate	INVENT D	4 10	BOTH		2	
					Produce Report	Exit

### 2. 742C Simulated Report

The 742C Simulated Report menu option allows the application user to generate an inventory report in the DOE/NRC Form 742C format.

The 742C Simulated Report screen below shows an example view of all the inventory records in the SAMS system. To generate the list of all current and historical inventory records click on the load button. To only produce a subset of the data loaded into the application the user may query the system by RIS, Start Date, and End Date from the drop down menus. The data retrieved will be displayed by Inventory Period ID, RIS, Generated Data, Inventory Date, and Date Closed information.

Inventory records that appear highlighted as yellow are historical records, and they can not be edited, or accessed in the 742C Simulated report. However, all other inventory records can be viewed and printed through the report function.

Once the records are populated in the screen, select the record to view through the DOE/NRC Form 742C Physical Inventory Listing. Place a check mark in the Print box located in the lower section of the screen and click the Print button to generate the 742C report form. The 742C report form will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the 742C form, select the Internet Explorer File menu and click print.

InventoryPeriodD RIS       GeneratedData       InventoryDate       DateClosed         123       ACD       11/30/2005       4/4/2008         432       ACD       11/30/2005       4/4/2008         432       ACD       11/30/2005       310         310       ACD       11/30/2005       5         264       BYC       11/30/2005       5         301       BYC       11/30/2005       5         273       CAI       11/30/2005       5         259       CAK       11/20/205       5         1       CAK       11/30/2005       5	-
InventoryPeriodD         RIS         GeneratedData         InventoryDate         DateClosed           123         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           432         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           24         ACD         11/30/2005         264           BYC         4/4/2008         11/30/2005         264           BYC         11/30/2005         273         CAI           301         BYC         11/30/2005         273           259         CAK         11/30/2005         259           1         CAK         11/30/2005         259	1
InventoryPeriodD         RIS         GeneratedData         InventoryDate         DateClosed           123         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           432         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           24         ACD         11/30/2005         310           310         ACD         11/30/2005         301           264         BYC         4/4/2008         4/4/2008           6         BYC         11/30/2005         301           310         ACD         11/30/2005         301           273         CAI         11/30/2005         259           273         CAI         11/30/2005         301           1         CAK         11/30/2005         301	1
InventoryPeriodD         RIS         GeneratedData         InventoryDate         DateClosed           123         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           432         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           24         ACD         11/30/2005         2           310         ACD         11/30/2005         2           264         BYC         4/4/2008         2           301         BYC         11/30/2005         2           301         BYC         11/30/2005         2           273         CAI         11/30/2005         2           259         CAK         11/20/2005         2           1         CAK         11/30/2005         2	1
InventoryPeriodD         RIS         GeneratedData         InventoryDate         DateClosed           123         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           432         ACD         11/30/2005         4/4/2008           24         ACD         11/30/2005         2           310         ACD         11/30/2005         2           264         BYC         4/4/2008         2           301         BYC         11/30/2005         2           273         CAI         11/30/2005         2           259         CAK         11/20/205         2           1         CAK         11/30/2005         2	-
123     ACD     11/30/2005     4/4/2008       432     ACD     11/30/2005       24     ACD     11/30/2005       310     ACD     11/30/2005       264     BYC     4/4/2008       6     BYC     11/30/2005       301     BYC     11/30/2005       273     CAI     11/30/2005       259     CAK     11/20/2005       1     CAK     11/30/2005	
432       ACD       11/30/2005         24       ACD       11/30/2005         310       ACD       11/30/2005         264       BYC       4/4/2008         6       BYC       11/30/2005         301       BYC       11/30/2005         273       CAI       11/30/2005         259       CAK       11/20/2005         1       CAK       11/30/2005	
24         ACD         11130/2005           310         ACD         11130/2005           264         BYC         4/4/2008           6         BYC         111/30/2005           301         BYC         111/30/2005           273         CAI         111/30/2005           259         CAK         11/29/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
310         ACD         11/30/2005           264         BYC         4/4/2008           6         BYC         11/30/2005           301         BYC         11/30/2005           273         CAI         11/30/2005           259         CAK         11/29/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
264         BYC         4/4/2008           6         BYC         11/30/2005           301         BYC         11/30/2005           273         CAI         11/30/2005           259         CAK         11/29/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
b         BYC         11130/2005           301         BYC         11/30/2005           273         CAI         11/30/2005           259         CAK         11/20/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
301         BYC         11/30/2005           273         CAI         11/30/2005           259         CAK         11/20/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
27.5         CAI         111/30/2005           259         CAK         11/29/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
259         CAN         11729/2005           1         CAK         11/30/2005	
CAN 11/30/2005	
278 CAK 11/30/2005	
1130/2005	
118 CCA 11/30/2005	
1150 CCA 11150/2005	
39 CCB 11/30/2005	
93 FBF 11/30/2005	
383 FBF 11/30/2005	
29 FCC 11/30/2005	
315 FCC 11/30/2005	
283 YNJ 11/30/2005	
11 YUD 11/30/2005	
288 YUD 11/30/2005	
Drint MeterialTura ConscieNatorialTura CompCode StreetAddrees City, StateCode Zin	
Find Material type Generic Material type Compcode Subectude cest test	
	-
/ 81 81 701	
/ 81 81 701	
ck 81 81 701	Ľ
e the	
0 load Print Befresh Fuit	
d The	Stree
	Succ
d State	eand
Print.   infor	rmati
enter	red fo
	nt for
repor	11 10ľ

NRC FORM 742CU         U.           VARY TOWN DATA COLLECTION         U.S. NUM           VARIANT DATA COLLECTION         PHYS           VARIANT DATA COLLECTION         PHYS				J.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND JCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION SICAL INVENTORY LISTING				APPROVED BY OMB: NO. 3150-0058 EXPIRES: MM/DO/ Editmetalizative per tegrande to one pix with Nine an addet collection request 4 forms. The advanced microscope of the NESS How the Advanced microscope of the Ninesy Service of Service of the Ninesy Service of Service of Service of the Ninesy Service of Servi				Safega anto restinue to and Baldpet, d conclust, or						
STRE 123	Anvi	where Road								1			1	ABC				
сіту Сол	nmont	own			$^{\rm state}_{Z\!\mathcal{A}}$	ZIP CODE 11111		3. INVE	NTORY DATE 1/2002	4. LIC	ENSE NU	MBER(S	6					
						5.	BATC	HDAT	A	<u> </u>						_	_	-
NATERIAL TYPE	COMPIFAC CODE	BLEMENT WEIGHT	ISOTORE WEIGHT	D DE PROJECT NO.	SCRAP PRO DRAH	WEIGHT PER-	0.000	SEQUENCE NUMBER	BATCHNAME	NO. OF TEME	KEY NEASURE	MSAS. BASIS	MEASUREMONTIL OTHERIMEAS. POINT	D. MEAS. MITHOD	BITRY STATUS	NSA.	STE BCC	PROCESS
33 39 23 23	F02 771 771 771	99 1 45 65	18 1 12 20	GGE044499X GAF2949999 GD D49949RN GD D49949RN			6 6 6 6	1 2 3 4										A A A
6.T	OTALS	210	51					5										
To the l	best of m	ry knowledge and	belief, the informa	stion given above?	and in any	attached schedu	ales is tr	ue, comp	slete, and correct.								_	_
7. SIGN	ATURE			8. TITLE												9.DAT	/E	
John Doe MC&A Re					2&A Representative 12/31/2002								2					
COMPI ANY D	NG: FAI LETE AN EPARTS	LSE STATEMENT ID ACCURATE IN JENT OR AGENC	S IN THIS CERTI ALL MATERIAL I	FICATE MAY BE RESPECTS: 18 U	SUBJECT J.S.C. SEC	TO CNIL AND/ TION 1001 MAR	OR CRI KES IT A [S JURI	MINAL P A CRIMIN SDICTIO	VENALTIES. NRC REG VAL OFFENSE TO MAR	SULATI KE A W	ONS RE	QUIRE LY FALS	THAT SUBN RESTATEME	ISSION	REPRI	HE NR ESENT	IC BE	N TO

# XI. Material Balance

The SAMS Material Balance menu function has four options that the user can select from. These options are Data Entry, Export Error-Free Material Balance Records to XML, Move Material Balance Records from Historical and Reports.



#### options for Material Balance.

# A. Material Balance Data Entry

When the Data Entry submenu is selected, an additional three options are available to the system user. They are Data Entry/Process Material Balance, Edit Material Balance, and Delete Material Balance.



### 1. Process Material Balance

The Data Entry menu option for Process Material Balance opens the screen view in which data is processed and edit checked. For the process material balance function, the following screen will appear concerning processing material balance data. This function is used to import material balance data into SAMS.

When importing data, the screen below provides a Choose File browser button for selecting the data file to import.

Run 1 Work Date 12/30/2008 2:51:31 PM
Choose File

To import material balance XML datasets, click on the Choose File browser button from the import screen and select the XML data file to be imported. The XML Dataset to Import file location screen will automatically display. Select the dataset to be imported by selecting it and then clicking on the open button.

Select the 742C	XML dataset to Import	? ×
Look in:	: 🗀 MB 💌 🗲 🖻 👘 🖽 -	
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	Base.xml Duplicates.xml Invalid for Load.xml VALID.xml	
My Network	File name: VALID.xml	lpen
Places	Files of type: DP742C Dataset (*.xml)	ancel

Once the data file is selected and it appears in the Choose File window, click on the Process button to execute the data file import.

The material balance import process will automatically start processing the data, and saving each record associated with the dataset. A message will appear in the Import window indicating the import is complete (see example below of the Material Balance Import process screen). You can scroll up and down the import window as the run is occurring to view the results.

MaterialBalance Process Form	l l
Running Edit Checks	
Run 1	This example shows
Work Date 12/30/2008 3:02:45 PM	imported and edited
Starting find data 3:02:45 PM	checked at the same time.
Find data complete 3:02:45 PM Find data for edit checks total time	
Starting Edit Checks 3:02:45 PM Saving Edit Checked Data 3:02:51 PM Saving Edit Checked DataCompleted. 3:02:51 PM Edit Check Record Count Total Records Checked: 170 Total Records In Error: 3 Edit ChecksCompleted 3:02:51 PM Edit Checks Total Processing Time 6 seconds	
VALID.xml Choose File	
	MaterialBalance Process Form         Running Edit Checks         Run       1         Work Date       12/30/2008 3:02:45 PM         Starting find data       3:02:45 PM         Find data complete       3:02:45 PM         Find data for edit checks total time       Image: Checks and time         Starting Edit Checks       3:02:45 PM         Starting Edit Checks       3:02:45 PM         Starting Edit Checks       3:02:51 PM         Starting Edit Checked Data       3:02:51 PM         Saving Edit Checked Data       3:02:51 PM         Edit Check Record Count Total Records Checked: 170       Total Records In Error: 3         Edit ChecksCompleted 3:02:51 PM       Edit ChecksCompleted 3:02:51 PM         Edit ChecksCompleted 3:02:51 PM       Edit Checks

Immediately after the process import is complete, the M-002S Material Balance Data Errors report screen will display for producing the error report. If there are more data files to import just click on the Exit button on the M-002S and repeat the material balance import process.

If there are more material balance XML datasets to import repeat the material balance import process. However, the Produce MB-002S Report screen will appear for producing the MB-002S report immediately after each process run (see example below of the MB-002S produce report screen).

Note: Once the MB-002S Produce Report button is selected it will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer for viewing and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

Select the Exit button on the Produce MB-002S Report screen and return to the Material Balance Import screen to process more XML datasets.

🔡 MB-0025								_ 🗆 ×
Report Level	Responsible R	IIS	Frequency	Report	Destination			
HDQ 🔻	QFA		▼ REQ	▼ PRINT	•	🔽 Save Blank Report		
ParameterName	e Pror	npt DataType	DataSize	ReportUse	DefaultValue	OrderBy		
RIS	RIS	С	4	BOTH		1		Note: This screen
StartDate	BEGI	N D	10	BOTH		2		Note. This screen
EndDate	ENDI	N D	10	BOIH		3		will appear
								immediately after
								each run when the
						•		Material Balance
								Import XMI
								import Mult
								process is
	Sele	ct the Pro	duce					completed.
	Dom	out hutton	to					
	кер	ort button	10					
	crea	te the MB	-					
	002	S report		<b>`</b>				
	002	s report.						
					<u> </u>			
						<b>A</b>		
						Produce Report	Exit	11

Note that if an I-002S Inventory Error report is generated with a No Data designation on page 2 of the report then there were no errors associated with the process run being conducted.

### 2. Run Material Balance Edit checks only

If new material balance data has been manually entered or existing data has been manually adjusted, the user **must** re-run the NMMSS Edit Check process using the Material Balance Processing form by selecting the Process button without selecting a file to be imported.

A window will appear noting that no file has been selected and give the user the option to continue with the processing run (edit checks) or cancel and start over with the file selection process to import information.

SELECT IMPORT FILE?	×
NO IMPORT FILE HAS BEEN SELECTED. PRESS OK TO CONTIUE WITH DAILY RUN. PRESS CANCEL TO RETURN AND SELECT AN IMPORT FILE BEFORE CONTINUING WITH THE DAILY RUN	
OK Cancel	

### 3. Edit Material Balance

The Edit Material Balance option allows the user to view previously imported data loaded through the Process Material Balance function or manually enter material balance data into the system. To view existing data, the user must query the application to pull up the required records. In performing the Edit Material Balance function, you have the option of selecting the load button to generate the inventory records, or you may add / manually input the material balance record data in the various fields to be processed.

The Edit Material Balance screen is divided into several sections as followed:

- 1. Filter and load data records section
- 2. Edit Material Balance window
- 3. Material, Concise Notes, and 742 data
- 4. Process Detail information

Note: Column headings that are highlighted (Blue) can be edited. Once changes are made to a file, that particular file will gray out in the grid.



The first portion of the screen display (upper right) provides drop down menu options to select the RIS and material balance data related to what is desired to be retrieved. This is known as the Query selection section. After selecting the material balance period RIS the user must also enter a data range of the material balance period desired. If a Start date

and End Date is not entered into the Query option then no data will be retrieved and displayed. The user also has the option to include additional filters related to the Material Type, Generic Material Type, or Sequence Number ranges to further filter the data being called up.

Once the desired filters are entered the user must select the Load button for the information to be retrieved from the database and displayed on the screen. To view historical material balance data click inside the box to remove the check mark from the Exclude Closed MB Data box.

Note: Data rows that are highlighted yellow in the table grids are considered historical or closed data which cannot be modify even though the column headings are highlighted blue.

Once the data is populated in the fields, select the record that you want to view or edit from the Material Balance Period section. The row that is selected will be highlighted. If no row is selected or highlighted, the program will default to the first row of records from the Material Balance Period section. The Material, Concise Notes, and 742 section is a child dependent to the first grid of Material Balance Period data and is recognized as the Lower Grid. All of the column fields in the Material Balance Edit screen that are highlighted blue can be edited.

To add new records manually the user must select the Add button on the bottom of the screen. This will start a new Material Balance Period series by adding a blank row to the bottom of the upper grid. After the Material Balance Period information is entered for the new records then the user can use the Add button to the right of the Material grids to add addition detail rows as needed dependent on the amount of data to be manually entered.

Any data entered into the screen is not added into the database until the Save button is selected. The Material Balance Edit screen will automatically refresh once the data is saved.

There are three Material Balance Edit tabs: Material, Concise Notes, and 742 associated with the Material Balance Edit screen. Below are screen view examples of each tab and the various column headings of information related to that particular tab.

To edit data within a tab, just click on the desired tab. All column headings associated with the tabs that are highlighted can be edited or updated. To edit data, click on the desired record and column field. When you need to add, delete, undelete, validate, save, refresh, or exit records, utilize the key buttons located at the bottom of the screen. Also, when adding a new file use the add button at the bottom of the screen. The added row will appear in the Edit Inventory window. When modifying information for the Material,

Concise Notes, and 742C tabs utilize the side buttons (Add, Delete, UnDelete, Copy and Paste).

### **Edit Material Balance Material Tab**

Material (	Concise Notes	742						
Type(	Code Materi	alBalance( 09 30 87 73	Category Othe XXO	r RIS Invento	oryChangeType	Internal Line N	umber Internal Tran	ISFER ES Con N N N N N
Eleme	entType Elen	nentWeig	<b>it</b> 18,734.000000	MaterialID 0 1640154	ElementID 1640155			Add Delete
Isotoj	peType	Material 20	Type Generic 20	MaterialType	1			UnDelete Copy Paste
Submitt	edBy Repor	tedByRIS	Status	RunNumbe 1	r RIS WorkD ZAD 4/18/20	ate Sequence 07 1	Number MaterialBal 284410	ancePeriodID Pro A
Error ID	ErrorDescr	iption				Exc	lude Error? LineNu	mber ProcessID
Delete	Un	Delete	Add		Validate	Save	Refresh	Exit

#### **Edit Material Balance Concise Notes Tab**

Material Concise Notes 742	
EntryReference LineNumber ConciseNoteText	
	Add
	Delete
	1 I

#### Edit Material Balance 742 Tab

Ma	iterial Concise I	Notes 742		
	MaterialType	MaterialBalanceCategory	GenericMaterialType	
	20 💌	09	20	
	20	30	20	
	20	87	20	Add
	20	73	20	
	20	81	20	Delete
	50	09	50	
	50	21	50	
	50	81	50	UnDelete
				Сору
				Paste
Ŀ	( <u> </u>		<u>}</u>	

#### **Material Balance Process Detail**

The very bottom of the Edit Material Balance window will display the results of the most current process run that has been conducted. If an material balance record has any edit check errors they will be displayed on the screen in this location. The process detail section provides information concerning the Process ID, Error ID, Line Numbers, Error Description and Exclude Error option, etc.

If the user wants to override an edit check error they have the option to exclude the error from being included in future process runs. This section will also display when data being adjusted no longer has errors.



**NOTE:** If any records are manually added or adjusted under the Material Balance Edit screen function then the data is saved to the database, however, the data has

not been reprocessed through the edit check function within SAMS yet. The Validate button does verify if there are any errors with the changes but the errors are not saved. The user will need to conduct another process run for the changes to be edit checked and the results updated within the database.

#### 4. Delete Material Balance

The Delete Material Balance function will allow you to select several material balance records to delete at one time, or you can delete one record at a time. However, once a record is deleted it is removed from the system.

Select the RIS material balance to be deleted by typing the RIS name in the RIS window, or clicking on the drop down and selecting from the list of valid RIS names. Once the RIS is selected, click on the Load material balance button, or you may elect to filter all the RIS by leaving the RIS window blank and clicking on the Load material balance button.

The material balance information concerning that particular RIS should appear in the lower grid window (Material Balance Period ID, RIS, Generated Date, Start Date, End Date and Delete Material Balance). Click in the Delete Material Balance box to place a check mark identifying that RIS records for deletion, then click on the Delete material balance button to delete the record.

If you loaded all the RIS but only want to delete certain ones, place a check mark in the Delete material balance boxes to delete. Once the RIS record is deleted, the Delete Material Balance screen will appear with a message indicating "Deletes Completed." The material balance records selected for deletion will no longer appear in the delete Material Balance window.

Ma	terial Balance Delete						
					RIS		
				Load Mat	erial Balance		
				Delete Ma	erial Balance		
					Exit		
	MaterialBalancePeriodID	RIS	GeneratedData	StartDate	EndDate	Delete MaterialBalance	
	339	XHM		12/4/2005	4/30/2006	<b>V</b>	-
	2029	XHM		12/4/2005	4/30/2006		
	2146	XLO		11/1/2005	4/30/2006		
	456	XLO		11/1/2005	4/30/2006		
	505	XLT		12/1/2005	4/30/2006		
	2195	XLT		12/1/2005	4/30/2006		
	2300	XML		10/29/2005	4/30/2006		
	610	XML		10/29/2005	4/30/2006		
	703	XMM		10/29/2005	4/30/2006		
	2393	XMM		10/29/2005	4/30/2006		
	2482	XXI		11/1/2005	4/30/2006		
Ø	792	XXI		11/1/2005	4/30/2006	×	
	809	YEN		11/1/2005	4/30/2006		
	2400	YEN.		11/1/2005	4/30/2006		
	2433						

Not that the Material Balance Delete screen option only allows the user to delete the entire material balance period. If the user desires to delete detail material balance information (lines of data within a given period) then they need to go to the Material Balance Edit screen option.

# B. Export Error-Free Material Balance Records to XML

Export Error-Free Material Balance Records contains data with no edit check errors or data with errors that have been overridden (e.g.: excluded). The data can be exported to NMMSS using XML, and/or moved to the Historical files at the same time.

The Tag and Export to XML Error-Free Material Balance Records screen below shows how the material balance data can be loaded by selecting the desired RIS along with the Start Date and End Date ranges for the data to be retrieved, and then clicking on the load button to generate the data.

Once the data is populated place a check mark in the Tag boxes for the records to be Exported to XML only, Moved to Historical only, or perform Both actions at the same time by selecting the Save button.

🔡 Ta	ag & Export to XML E	rror-Free Material	Balance Re	ecords		_ _	×
		RIS			<b>T</b>		
		Start Date			•		
		End Date			-		
					_		
	alancePeriodID RIS	GeneratedData St	artDate	EndDate	DateClosed	Tag ProcessCo	Clipte in side the
	XHM	12	/4/2005	4/30/2006			Click inside the
	XLO	11	/1/2005	4/30/2006		🖌 A	Tag box to place a
	XLT	12	/1/2005	4/30/2006		A	check mark for
	XML	10	/29/2005	4/30/2006		✓ A	the records that
	XMM	10	/29/2005	4/30/2006		A	
	XXI	11	/1/2005	4/30/2006		A	will be exported
.0	YLN	11	/1/2005	4/30/2006		A	only, moved to
	ZAD	1/2	2/2006	4/30/2006		A .	historical, or both.
	ZRV	11	/16/2005	4/30/2006		A	than salact the
							complete the action
11						(	
		C Export to XML C	)nly ON	love to Historical	Only 🖲 Both		
	Load	S	ave	Refresh	Exit		

Once the Save button is selected and either the "Export to XML Only" radio button, or the "Both" radio button is selected you will be asked to save the 742 XML Dataset (see example below). However, if you select the "Move to Historical Only" radio button you will receive the Save Completed Ok message.

Name of the 742	XML Datasetset			? ×	
Save in:	C ExportedXML		- 🖬 🖆 🖬 -		
My Recent Documents Desktop My Documents My Computer	<ul> <li>INV2008032713</li> <li>INV2008040313</li> <li>INV2008040313</li> <li>INV2008040408</li> <li>INV2008040408</li> <li>MB20080404124</li> <li>MB20080404134</li> <li>Test 1, xml</li> <li>Test, xml</li> <li>Test, xml</li> <li>TR20080327124</li> <li>TR20080327133</li> <li>TR20080401074</li> <li>TR20080401075</li> <li>TR20080401080</li> </ul>	51181.xml 03091.xml 47041.xml 38481.xml 39352.xml 48331.xml 38552.xml 46541.xml 30302.xml 30302.xml 307054.xml 19271.xml 38042.xml			Example concerning Exporting and saving 742 XML Dataset. 1. Provide file name and
My Network Places	, File name: Save as type:	Test 2 DP742 Dataset (*.xml)		Save Cancel	identify where to save file 2. Click Save 3. Click Ok for
				×	the file address 4. Click Ok for Save Completed
Export to C:\I	Program Files\W	SRC\SAMS Application\E	xportedXML\Test 2.xml	Successful	
Save Save Complet	ted.				

# C. Move Material Balance Records From Historical

The Move Material Balance Records from Historical screen allows the user to reassign a material balance record that has been placed into historical back to active. The screen below shows how the material balance data can be queried and loaded by selecting the RIS, Start Date and End Date information; and then clicking on the Load button to generate the data. If desired the user can leave the drop down windows blank and click the Load button to call up all historical records.

Once the historical data is populated, place a check mark in the Tag box for the material balance records that need to be removed from the historical material balance files, and then select the Save button. There should appear a Save Completed Ok message immediately after.

🔜 Move Historical Material Balance Records		
RIS Start Date End Date End Date ■ MaterialBalancePeriodID RIS GeneratedData Sta Ø 505 XLT 12/1 809 YLN 111/1 935 ZRV 111/1	▼           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■           ■         ■         ■           ■         ■         ■         ■         ■           ■	Click inside the Tag box to place a check mark for the material balance records that will be removed from historical files, and then click Save to complete the transaction.
LoadSave	RefreshExit	

# D. Material Balance Reports

The SAMS Material Balance Reports are MB-002S – Material Balance Data Errors report and 742 Simulated Report.

To access the reports, click on Material Balance menu and Reports submenu and then select the MB-002S – Material Balance Data Errors report, or the 742C Simulated Report.



Note: Internet Explorer provides the user the option to allow or not allow Active Content updates when displaying reports. The user needs to ensure that the SAMS system is set to allow active content updates or the XML report formats will not be correct and the printed or viewed report will be shifted.

### 1. MB-002S – Material Balance Data Errors

The M-002S report is a SAMS specific report that lists out the errors that have been identified for NMMSS material balance records that have been entered into the system and processed through a daily run.

Once the M-002S report screen appears, the processing selections available for selecting information to run is through the drop down header menu for Report Level, Responsible RIS, Frequency and the lower column grid for RIS, Start Date, and End Date. See example of the M-002S Report screen below.

To generate a material balance report click on the Produce Report button, ensure you have selected the correct criteria in the drop down header menu and lower parameter fields. The report will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the report, select the Internet Explorer File menu and print.

🔛 MB-0025								. U ×
Report Level	Responsible RIS		Frequency	Report D	estination			
HDQ 💌	QFA	•	REQ	▼ PRINT	•	🔽 Save Blank Report		
ParameterName	e Promp	t DataType	DataSize R	leportUse	DefaultValue	OrderBy		
RIS	RIS	С	4 B	OTH		1		
StartDate	BEGIN	D	10 B	OTH		2		
EndDate	ENDIN	D	10 B	OTH		3		
							<b>E</b> 2 1	
						Produce Report	Exit	

## 2. 742 Simulated Report

The 742 Simulated Report menu option allows the application user to generate a material balance report in the DOE/NRC Form 742 format.

The 742 Simulated Report screen below shows a view of all the material balance records in the SAMS system. To generate the current and historical records click on the load button, or select a RIS and dates from the drop down menus. The Material Balance Period ID, RIS, Generated Data, Start Date, End Date, and Date Closed information for all the material balance records will appear.

Material Balance records that appear highlighted as yellow are historical records, and they can not be edited, or accessed in the 742 Simulated report. However, all other records can be viewed and printed through the report function.

Once the records are populated in the screen, select the record to view through the DOE/NRC Form 742 Material Balance Report. Place a check mark in the Print box located in the lower section of the screen and click the Print button to generate the 742 report form. The 742 report form will automatically open into Microsoft Internet Explorer and will save the report in its designated file location. To print the 742 form, select the Internet Explorer File menu and click print.

				RIS 🗌			-		
			St	art Date			•		
			E	nd Date			•		
	Material	BalancePeriodID	RIS	Generated	IData <mark>StartDat</mark> e	e	EndDate	DateClosed	
	2029		XHM		12/4/2005	; ·	4/30/2006		
	2146		XLO		11/1/2005	; .	4/30/2006		
	505		XLT		12/1/2005	; .	4/30/2006		
	2195		XLT		12/1/2005	; .	4/30/2006		
	2300		XML		10/29/200	)5 -	4/30/2006		
	703		XMM		10/29/200	15	4/30/2006		
	2393		XMM		10/29/200		4/30/2006		
	2482		XXI VEN		11/1/2005	) -	4/30/2006		
	2400		Y LIN VI N		11/1/2005	) :	4/30/2006		
	1000		VNU		5/6/2005	, ,	4/30/2006		
	2690		YNJ		5/6/2005		4/30/2006		
	902		ZAD		1/2/2006		4/30/2006		
	2592		ZAD		1/2/2006		4/30/2006		
	935		ZRV		11/16/200	)5	4/30/2006		
	0005		704						
	2625		ZRV		11/16/200	)5  ·	4/30/2006		
	_2625		ZRV		11/16/200	)5	4/30/2006		
	Print Ma	terialBalancePer	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200	Mater	4/30/2006	ericMaterialTy	e Stree
	2625	terialBalancePer 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200	• Mater 10	rialType Gene 10	ericMaterialTy;	e Stree
	2625 Print Ma 7 ♥ 230 ♥ 230	<b>terialBalancePer</b> 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200  anceCategory 09 22	Mater 10	rialType Gene 10 10	ericMaterialTyr	e Stree
	2625           Print         Ma           7         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	<b>terialBalancePer</b> 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200  anceCategory 09 22 73 94	Mater 10 10 10	rialType Gene 10 10 10	ericMaterialTyr	e Stree
	Print         Ma           7         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	<b>terialBalancePer</b> )0 )0 )0 )0	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200  anceCategory 09 22 73 81 85	Mater 10 10 10 10	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10	ericMaterialTyr	e Stree
	Print         Ma           7         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200  anceCategory 09 22 73 81 85 86	Mater 10 10 10 10 10 10	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 10	ericMaterialTyp	e Stree
	2625           Print         Ma           7         ✔         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200 lanceCategory 09 22 73 81 85 86 09	5 Mater 10 10 10 10 10 10 20	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 20	ericMaterialTy	e Stree
	2625           Print         Ma           7         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200 lanceCategory 09 22 73 81 85 86 09 09	5 0 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 20 20	fialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 20 20	ericMaterialTyc	e Stree
	2625           Print         Ma           7         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200 lanceCategory 09 22 73 81 85 86 09 09 71	15 10 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20	tialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20	ericMaterialTy	e Stree
	Print         Ma           7         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200 lanceCategory 09 22 73 81 85 86 09 09 71 	Mater 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20	fialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20	ericMaterialTy	e Stree
	2625           Print         Ma           230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230           ✓         230         ✓         230	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200 lanceCategory 09 22 73 81 85 86 09 09 09 71 	/ Mater 10 10 10 10 20 20 20	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20	ericMaterialTy	
	2625 Print Ma 7	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200	15 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20 7 7 8 Refr	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20 20	ericMaterialTy	
check	2625 Print Ma 7	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200	/ Mater 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20 7 7 8 Refr	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20 20	ericMaterialTy:	
check n	2625         Print       Ma         7       ✓       230         ✓       230       230         ✓       ✓       230         ✓       ✓       ✓         ✓	terialBalancePer 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	riodID	MaterialBa	11/16/200	/ Mater 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 20 7 Refr	rialType Gene 10 10 10 10 10 20 20 20 esh	ericMaterialTy:	

000/	NRC FO	) Rin (	742U U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY	APPROVED BY 1	M0: N0. 2150-0044	EXPRES: MMSDIYYY
8533	Blee	Ch .	AND	Editorial interface	our menunes in post	the selfin finite responsibility problem in successive
24			U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION	tiouris. Reparted I	per response to cong essons learned are inc	organized into the loonsing process and the
83		664		Conversion State	vices Dennis (1-5-FS	23. U.S. Machael Regulatory Conmittee
00 HIL	10400.0	8-91		the Desk Officer	20166-0001 , or by the Office of Informatio	ener e-mail to infocolie/tegens.gov, and t on and Receiver's Affairs, 19208-10203
			TERMAL RALAMON DEBORT	(14 Sil-3004), Office specific transmission	a of Management and a telever place codesity	Bucipet, Wilsteington, DC 20100, If a mean on data and display A supervisity would DM
	l	MA.	TERIAL BALANCE REPORT	part tel number, this respond to, the	a MRC may not can be information collection	act or sports or, and a person is not require
1.144	8.85 B	mers	8	2 DOPEN HERE	5/5	3. REPORTED PROVIDENTS
				A DOUGTING TRANS		<ul> <li>BARD Mill</li> </ul>
Ad	(vence	d Ph	iyaża			ABC
12	3 Anya	elses	e Roed	4. REPORT PER	(PYYYADDAM) 000	5. MATERIAL TYPE
Ct	attention (	10M	n ZA 11111	FROM	10	Concernational advances and that
				01/01/2002	12/31/2002	50
SEC	TION	Α	MATERIAL ACC	OUNTABILIT	ΓY	
PC	SEQ				A ELEMENTY	VEIGHT B. ISOTOPE WEIGHT
A	1	8.	BEGINNING INVENTORY - U.S. GOVT-OWNED		0.00	0.00
		9.	BEGINNING INVENTORY NOT U.S. GOVT-OW	NED		
			RECEPTS			
		11.	PROCUREMENT FROM DOE RIS			
A	2	1	FHOM: DEF		11207.00	1112.00
		1				
		18.	PROCUREMENT = FOR THE ACCOUNT OF UCE			
		14.	DOD RETURNS - USE A			
		15.	DOD RETURNS USE B			
		16.	DOD RETURNS - OTHER USES			
		271.	PRODUCTION			
		22.	FROM OTHER MATERIALS & ICT			
			b. ICT			
			e. ICT			
		200.1	RECEIPTS REPORTED TO DOE MRC ON DOE MRC INT (62.92)	ec-elsestitere)		
			PROM: POS			
8	- 2		GHI		38.00	26.00
		-				
		24	RECEIPTS - MISC			
		1077. 1077	DRAN DONOUT DE ATUERO			
		201	DOMATED MATERIAL - COOM ILC. CONTITO O			
		20.	DONATED MATERIAL - PROFESSION OF A REAL PROFESSION	CIDENT		
		4.6	TOTAL A lines 8.991	adata (		
		79.	REMOVER STREET			
		41.	EXPENDED IN SPACE PROGRAMS			
		12	SMESTOUS GOVERNOOT RIS			
			TD:			
		1				
		40.1	AND TO OTHERS FOR THE ADDOLLAF OF M.S. BOYT, MIS			
			TO:			
		44,	DOD - USEA			
		45.	DOD USE B			
A	4	46.	DOD - OTHER USES		2.00	1.00
		47.	EXPENDED N U.S. GOVT TESTS			
		48.	ROUTINE TESTS			
		49,	SHIPPER - RECEIVER DIFFERENCE			
		\$1.3	EXPLENTEREPORTED TO NRODOE ON NRODOE 311 (XX)	(ned etimology)		
			TO: RIS			
		]				

NECTORNING (MM/11/1) (PREVIOUS EDITIONS ARE OSSILETED

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PARTY.

SEC	TION.	A (Continued)	MATERIAL ACCOUNTABILI	TY	
PC	SEQ			A. ELEMENT WEIGHT	B. ISOTOPE WEIGHT
		54. SHIPMENTS - MISC			
		58. DONATED MATERIAL - TO	U.S. GOVT BY OTHERS		
		59. DONATED MATERIAL TO	OTHERS BY U.S. OOVT		
		65. ROUNDING ADJUSTMENT			
		71. DESRADIATION TO OTHER MM	JERIALS & ICT		
			b. ICT		
		32. DECAY			
		78. FISSION AND TRANSMUT/	TION		
		74. NORMAL OPERATIONAL L	OSSESIMEASURED DISCARDS		
		75. ACCIDENTAL LOSSES			
		TR: APERCMED WRITE-CEES.			
		77. INVENTORY DIFFERENCE			
		80. ENDING INVENTORY - U.S	S. BOVT OWNED		
A	5	81. ENDING INVENTORY – NO	IT U.S. GOVT OWNED	11243	1138
		82. TOTAL (illies 43-81)			
		83. BIAS ADJUSTMENT			
SEC	TION	6	FOREIGN OBLIGATIONS		
PC	SEQ	1. COUNTRY	OF OBLIGATION	2. ELEMENT WEIGHT	3. ISOTOPE WEGHT
		4. TOT)	AL WEIGHT		
SEC	TION	Ġ	CERTIFICATION		
The Pro-		-	An and a size of the second se	Contract and an an an Array of	and the second second
10.00	n pere	or my knowledge sho beller, the is	tormation given score and in any se	acted screepies is true, to	eripierie, and connect.
storest.Mit (and mithidans to prevenue to contributedly			1114		DATE
701	$\mathfrak{m} \otimes \mathfrak{m}$	06	MC8A Representative		12/31/2002
WAR RECK MARS OF TH	NING: 1 JINE TH ESTITA NEUNIT	VALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERT INT SUBMISSIONS TO THE INFC BE CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A W TED STATES AS TO ANY WATTER V	PICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO GIVIL A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL M LUPULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REP ATHIN ITS JURISDICTION.	NDIOR CRIMINAL PENALTIE ATERIAL RESPECTS, 18 U.S. RESENTATION TO ANY DEP	5. MIC REBULATIONS 3.C. BECTION 1001 ARTMENT OR AGENCY
### XII. System

### A. Reset Defaults

When utilizing the System menu function for Reset Defaults, this function resets all file grid changes such as split windows, resizing columns and column header moves, etc back to the SAMS original format, or you can select specific SAMS modules to reset default to the SAMS original format without affecting all the modules.

Keep in mind, if you only want to reset a single grid back to the original setting, you can also use the shortcut function by performing a right mouse click and selecting "Restore Defaults" for the grid that you are current in.



### B. Clear Data Cache

There may be times that the importing of data will result in erroneous system errors being produced. If this occurs then their may be a problem with the Data Cache being out of memory. This menu option allows the user to clear this Data Cache area to prevent the continuing of these erroneous errors. The application user may want to clear the Data Cache out on a routine basis to prevent these types of problems from occurring.



## XIII. Utilities

The Global Parameters and Import NMMSS Data functions are located under the Utilities menu. To access the Global Parameters and Import NMMSS Data functions, click on the Utilities menu and select the appropriate function.

🔡 Safeguards Management Software (SAMS) - Connected To Server: (local) 🛛 Database: SAMS								
Authority Reference	Transactions	Inventory	Material Balance	System	Utilities	Exit		
					Global Parameters			
					Import NMMSS Data			
							•	

### A. Global Parameters

Global Parameters establish the default path for the SAMS Reports and Store Procedures which is normally set up and control by the system administrator. You should reference the installation section to determine what is being established when the application is being installed on your computer system.

🔜 GlobalParameters						
Value	KeyField	Sequenc	Description			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Exported	XMLExportPat	1	Location of the Exported XML Files			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Reports\	BatchReportPa	1	Location of the Shared Reports for clients machines			
	ClassificationG	1	Classification guidance			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Assembli	CLRAssembly	1	Location of the CLR assembly DLLs on the SQL Server side.			
300	CommandTime	1	How long to wait while executing a command?			
180	ConnectionTim	1	How long to wait while establishing a connection?			
D:\MSSQL\Backup\	DatabaseBack	1	Location of database backups initiated by NMMSS application			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Data\	ExportDataPat	1	Location of the Exported Data Files and Format Files for Bulk Import			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Reports\	GeneratedRep	1	Location of the Reports on the SQL Server side			
	OperatorName	1	Name of the NMMSS operator			
	OperatorContr	1	Operator contract information			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Stored Pr	StoredProcedu	1	Location of the Stored Procedure SourceCode.			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Styleshee	StylesheetPath	1	Location of the stylesheets on the SQL Server side			
C:\Program Files\WVSRC\SAMS Application\Imported	XMLImportPat	1	Location of the XML Import Files			
01/01/2009	XMLDate	1	Implementation Date of New XML			
Copy Delete UnDelete Add Validate Save Save Valid Refresh Exit						

### B. Import NMMSS Data

The Import NMMSS Data function is utilized for updating the NMMSS Authority Reference data that will be sent to the SAMS user community. This option will allow the data to be updated without sending out a new version of the SAMS application. NMMSS operations at DOE-HQ will send out a dataset that will include the updated information. It is very important that the user recognize that if the SAMS RIS Address has been unchecked that the information for that RIS will not be updated (see Authority Reference section). When selecting the SAMS Import NMMSS Data function from the Utilities menu, you will receive the below screen messages stating "Do you wish to import the NMMSS data?" If you click no, SAMS application will return to the main menu screen.

If you click yes, SAMS application will start importing the data. Once the import is complete you will receive another message indicating the "Import Completed". At this point the Authority Reference information will have been updated.

Import N	MMSS Data		×
2	Do you wish	to import NMMS	S data?
	Yes	No	
Utility	×		
Import Co	mpleted		
OK			

Additional information will be sent out related tot his process when the updated Authority Reference data files are sent out for inclusion into the SAMS application.

# XIV. Exit

Select Exit on the menu bar whenever you want to close the SAMS program application.

🔜 Safeguards Management Software (SAMS) - Connected To Server: (local) 🛛 Database: SAMS							
Authority Reference	Transactions	Inventory	Material Balance	System	Utilities	Exit	
							Click Exit to close the SAMS program application.